
 

 

 
VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
Regular Council Meeting 

Agenda 
Glenwood Community Hall (90 Main Avenue) 

Thursday May 14, 2020 scheduled to start at 7:00pm 
 

 

Page 1 of 2 

To access the supporting documents to this agenda, first download the agenda to your own 
computer/device, then look for them as attachments to the .pdf agenda document. 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Prayer 

 
3. Adoption of Agenda 

 
4. Adoption of Previous Minutes: 

a) 2020.04.09 Regular Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Delegations: 
a) RCMP Quarterly Report 

 
6. Items for Discussion and/or Action: 

a) Non-Residential Education Property Tax Deferral vs General Tax Deferral 
b) Mill Rate Budget Review 
c) Bylaw #245-2020 Rates, Fees & Charges 
d) Approval to pay CRA payroll remittances on a monthly basis by EFT to Government Tax 

Payment & Filing Service through ATB 
e) Set a By-election date by resolution 

i. must be held before July 22 OR 
ii. Resolution to request an extension for the by-election to August 22 (and letter 

from mayor) 
1. State reasons for the extension request (COVID19 concerns, etc) 

iii. Nominations begin the day after this council meeting and last until 6 weeks 
before the election day 

f) Appoint a Returning Officer by resolution & Deputy Returning Officer – Connie Gibb is 
available 

g) Optional - Resolution to provide the holding of an advance vote for the by-election (If so, 
the Returning Officer sets the date and times) 

h) Optional - Resolution to vote by special ballot in one of the following methods and 
during a specified period of time (a person would apply to receive the special ballot); 

i. In writing 
ii. By telephone 
iii. By fax 
iv. In person 
v. By email, or  
vi. By secure website 

i) Resolution to include the vote on the question: Do you support the Village of Glenwood 
contributing $75,000, with matching contribution of $75,000 being provided by Tough 



Page 2 of 2 

Country Communications, towards the installation of fibre internet to each home and 
business in Glenwood; and the remaining funding coming from a Federal CRTC grant 
for a total project cost of approximately $650,000? 
 

7. Councillor Reports: 
 

8. CAO Report: 
 

9. Financial Reports: 
a) Accounts Payable Cheques for April 2020 (20190668-20190715) 
b) 2020 Budget vs Actual Review Jan-April 2020 
c) Bank Reconciliation Jan, Feb & Mar 2020 

 
10. Correspondence: 

a) AHS South ZEOC LO Update March 
b) AHS South ZEOC LO Update April 
c) AHS South ZEOC LO Update May 
d) Board Report - April 2020 
e) CCES MINUTES Mar 5, 2020 
f) Condolence Cardston County letter 
g) Condolence Minister's letter 
h) Condolence ORRSC letter 
i) Condolence card Town of Cardston 
j) FactSheet_QA_April 17 
k) FAQ_May 8 
l) Letter and MOs from Minister Madu 
m) Letter to Members re Access to Health Care 
n) ORRSC Executive Minutes - February 13, 2020 
o) Police Advisory Board Appointments 
p) Relaunch 

 
11. Closed Meeting: 

a) Employee Matters (Public Works Foreman future plans) – As per Section 24(b)(i) of the 
FOIP Act 

 
12. Adjournment: 





VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
April 9, 2020 Minutes 


 
The Regular Village of Glenwood Council meeting was held at the Glenwood 
Community Hall on April 9, 2020 scheduled at 7:00 PM. 
 
In attendance:  Mayor Albert Elias, Deputy Mayor David Rolfson, Councillors 
Gerald Carter and Barton Lybbert. Councillor Myron Lybbert was absent. 
 
Officials:  Assistant CAO Carrie Kinahan was in attendance. 


 
 


 


 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes April 9, 2020 Initials: Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Called to Order 
 
 
Prayer 
 
Agenda Adoption 
2020.04.040 
 
 
Minutes Adoption 
2020.04.041 
 
 
Delegations: 
Mercer Wilde & Hakon 
Skoien – 2019 Audit 


 
Assessment Review 
Group - report 
 
Items for Discussion: 
2019 Municipal Audit 
2020.04.042 
 
 
Councillor M Lybbert 
2020.04.043 
 
 
 
Deferral of Property 
Tax Payments 
2020.04.044 
 
 
Waiving Business 
Water Shut Off/on Fees 
2020.04.045 
 
 
Waive Interest Charges 
on Overdue Utility Bills  
2020.04.046 
 
 
 
Campers 
 
Council & CAO Reports 
Councillor Carter 
 
 


Mayor Albert Elias called the April 9, 2020 Regular Council Meeting 
to order at 7:03 PM 
 
Councillor Carter 
 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to adopt the agenda with one addition: 6.c 
Campers - concerns around them coming into the Village. 


Carried 
 
Councillor Barton Lybbert MOVED to adopt the minutes of the 
2020.03.12 Regular Council Meeting.  


Carried 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 
 
 
Councillor B Lybbert MOVED to accept the Municipal Audit as 
presented. 


Carried 
 
Mayor Elias MOVED to approve Councillor Myron Lybbert be absent 
from all upcoming council meetings indefinitely, per MGA Section 
174(1). 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the discussion until the next 
regularly scheduled council meeting. 


Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to waive Business water shut off/on fees 
until December 31, 2020 to aid during COVID19.     


 Carried 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to table the discussion until the next 
regularly scheduled council meeting. 


Carried 
 
No resolutions on this item. 
 
 


• Attended Chinook Foundation meeting – discussed raising 
the annual requisition to meet expenses 


 







 


Village Of Glenwood Council Meeting Minutes April 9, 2020 Initials: Page 2 of 2 
 


Mayor Elias 
 
 
Deputy Mayor Rolfson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor B. Lybbert 
 
 
 
Assistant CAO Carrie 
Kinahan 
 
 
2020.04.047 
 
 
 
Financial Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
2020.04.048 
 
 
 
Correspondence 
 
 
Adjournment 
2020.04.049 


• No meetings this month 
 
 


• Library Board meeting on whether to close or not. 
• Been cleaning up the Library while maintaining Social 


distancing 
• Chief Mountain Regional Solid Waste Authority (CMRSWA) 


meetings postponed until further notice. 
 
 


• Reported on Recreation Board; all upcoming events 
cancelled, due to COVID19 


• Cemetery clean up day; Working on how to do clean up and 
keep a Social Distance  


 
• Reported on COVID19 issues. 


  
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to accept the councillor and CAO reports 
as information. 


Carried 
 
• Council reviewed the Accounts Payable Cheques for March 


2020 (20190642 – 20190667 & 20190688) 
• Council reviewed the 2020 Budget VS Actual Operating & 


Capital Report to date 
 
 
Councillor Lybbert MOVED to accept the financial reports as 
information. 


Carried 
 
No correspondence available for this meeting, due to CAO absence. 
 
 
 
Councillor Carter MOVED to adjourn the meeting at 9:03 PM. 


Carried 
 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Meeting Chair 


 
 
 


_____________________________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 


  
 

















https://alberta.ca 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: April 2020 


Frequently asked questions: 


Non-Residential Property 
Tax Deferral 
This FAQ answers some of the commonly asked questions regarding education property tax deferrals. Please 
read through the questions and answers carefully. Should you require further clarification, please email your 
question to TaxProgramDelivery@gov.ab.ca. 


What are the 
acceptable options 


for the non-
residential property 


tax deferral? 


 


How many months 
do I need to defer 


both municipal and 
education property 


tax to satisfy the 
combined 


approach? 


 


If our normal 
property tax due 


date is September 
30th or later, do we 
have to implement 


one of the 
acceptable 


approaches? 


 


Municipalities have two options to defer non-residential property taxes.  
Municipalities who wish to defer the education property tax portion must defer 
property taxes to ensure penalties and interest are not applied if taxes are paid in 
full on or before September 30, 2020. Municipalities who wish to defer both 
municipal and education property taxes must defer the appropriate number of 
months to ensure the deferral benefit is equal to or greater than a six-month 
deferral of education property tax. The six-month deferral begins April 1. 


This will depend on the ratio between your municipal property tax rate and your 
local education property tax rate. The greater your municipal tax rate is versus 
your education tax rate, the shorter the necessary deferral period. As long as the 
cumulative benefit of a municipal and education property tax is the same or 
greater than a six-month education property tax deferral, the combined approach 
is acceptable. 


For more information and examples of acceptable approaches, please see the 
Non-Residential Property Tax Deferral Guidelines. 


No. Because your municipality’s property tax due date is later than the deferral 
date of September 30, you have already effectively provided a six-month deferral 
from April 1. You are still required to provide the appropriate government 
messaging to be included with your tax notices. The appropriate messaging can 
be found here: 


2020 education property tax insert – Education tax only; 


2020 education property tax insert – Combined approach or; 


2020 education property tax insert – Due date after October 1. 



mailto:TaxProgramDelivery@gov.ab.ca

https://open.alberta.ca/dataset/07b5c872-e582-47c5-a4f3-1266af3941fe/resource/9a4f3d2a-58ae-45fc-b56a-3b527b300fa8/download/ma-non-residential-property-tax-deferral-guidelines.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/ma-covid-non-residential-education-property-tax-insert.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/ma-covid-non-residential-education-property-tax-insert-combined.pdf

https://alberta.ca/assets/documents/ma-covid-non-residential-education-property-tax-insert-due-after-oct-1.pdf





https://alberta.ca 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: April 2020 


My municipality 
uses self-mailers for 


tax notices.  How 
do I include the 


government 
messaging? 


 It is preferred the standard messaging be included as an insert to tax notices. In 
the case of self-mailers, or other automatic processes, at a minimum, the 
standard messaging text should be included on the self-mailer with a hyperlink to 
the appropriate Government of Alberta messaging. 


Can a due date for 
education property 


taxes later than 
September 30th be 


used? 


 Yes. It is at your council’s discretion as to when you defer property tax. Non-
residential education property tax will not be requisitioned from municipalities 
until December 2020. The December 2020 invoice will include the June, 
September, and December non-residential amounts and the December 
residential amount. 


How do I implement 
this tax deferral 


within my property 
tax bylaws? 


 To implement tax deferrals, municipalities with penalties outlined in the annual 
tax rate bylaw will set the penalty dates in line with the tax deferral program 
approved by council and one of the acceptable options.


For those municipalities with specific tax penalty bylaws, it is recommended that 
an amending bylaw to the tax penalty bylaw be drafted and approved by council. 


The amending bylaw would stipulate the deferred tax penalty dates for the 2020 
tax year only, again in line with the tax deferral program approved by council and 
one of the acceptable options. 


Is the six month 
property tax deferral 


from the tax due 
date? 


 No. The six-month tax deferral is from April 1 to September 30. For example, if 
your municipality’s normal tax due date is June 30, you’re required to defer non-
residential education property tax to September 30 or an equivalent of municipal 
and education property tax for a shorter period of time. If your tax due date is 
September 15, you still are required to defer non-residential education property 
tax until September 30 or for a shorter period if both municipal and education tax 
is deferred. 


Can the tax due 
date be earlier than 


the deferral date? 


 Yes. It is important to ensure flexibility for non-residential ratepayers to defer 
payment of taxes without incurring penalties or interest. It is acceptable to 
maintain an earlier tax due date, such as June 30, to encourage timely payment 
from those who can afford it. However, non-residential ratepayers must have the 
option to defer payment to a later date that aligns with one of the acceptable 
options. It is also important that communication to ratepayers be clear about their 
ability to defer payment without penalties or interest. 


I have non-
residential 


taxpayers using a 
Tax Installment 
Payment Plan 


 A ratepayer on a TIPP, who cannot afford to pay their taxes should contact their 
municipality to cancel their participation. Alternatively, the ratepayer can ask for 
the education property tax only to be deferred until at least September 30. 







https://alberta.ca 
©2020 Government of Alberta  |  Published: April 2020 


(TIPP).  How do I 
address these 


payments? 


If a taxpayer on a monthly payment plan has their payment plan deferred until 
September 30, the last three monthly payments will have to account for the 
remainder of the 2020 education property tax. 


How will the non-
residential 


education property 
tax deferral impact 


opted-out school 
boards? 


 There will be no impact to opted-out school boards. Municipalities will be required 
to submit the full portion of residential education property taxes, as scheduled, to 
their respective opted-out school board(s). This is regardless of whether the 
municipality collects any taxes during that period or not. Opted-out school boards 
will be responsible for submitting the required portion of residential property taxes 
to the Alberta School Foundation Fund. The balance of the deferred non-
residential amount must be paid to the school board(s) by December 31 and will 
be due to the Alberta School Foundation Fund by the close of the 2020 calendar 
year.  


Regardless of the amount of taxes deferred, opted-out school boards will receive 
the appropriate amount of per-student funding from the Alberta School 
Foundation Fund as per normal practice. 


What assessment 
classes are 


included in the 
property tax 


deferral? 


 All non-residential property is included in the deferral, including designated 
industrial property, commercial property, pipelines, and wells. 








VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for Changes


SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDS


TAX REVENUES
1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (6,000)           171                (5,829)           To match requisition
1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (53,000)         800                (52,200)         To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019
1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (13,900)         (100)              (14,000)         To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019
1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (233,500)       6,200             (227,300)       To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019
1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (23,300)         500                (22,800)         To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019
1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing (5,585)           5,585             -                    To reflect NIL tax revenue increase compared to 2019


GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES
1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,000)           (4,000)           
1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (9,000)           (9,000)           (18,000)         To reflect 2019 actuals
1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,500)           (3,500)           
1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (300)              (300)              
1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (180)              (180)              
1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (100)              (100)              
1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (240)              (240)              
1-12-00-00-00-561 Rental Buildings (2,000)           (2,000)           


OPERATING GRANTS REVENUES
1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (2,500)           (2,500)           
1-00-00-00-00-751 Grant ACP (1,000)           (1,000)           
1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,000)         2,393             (31,607)         To reflect announced funding amount


PROTECTIVE SERVICES REVENUES
1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Proceeds - Fines, Lease (200)              (200)              


TRANSPORTATION SERVICES REVENUES
1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (200)              (200)              
1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (100)              (100)              


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REVENUES
Irrigation:


1-40-00-00-00-041 Sales - Irrigation (10,200)         (1,000)           (11,200)         


Water:


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install (1,000)           (1,000)           
1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (100)              (100)              
1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (110,200)       (110,200)       
1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,000)           (3,000)           
1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (500)              (500)              


Waste water:


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install (1,000)           (1,000)           
1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (24,000)         (24,000)         
1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,000)           (3,000)           
1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000)           (4,000)           


Waste management:


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,000)         (12,000)         


CEMETERY REVENUES
1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (600)              (600)              
1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery Donations (500)              (500)              
1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution (1,375)           (1,375)           


RECREATION & CULTURE REVENUES
1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,000)           (1,000)           
1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100)              (100)              
1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (47,600)         47,600           -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days Funds-Fireworks Donations (3,000)           (3,000)           
1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Revenue (2,400)           (2,400)           


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT REVENUES
1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (200)              (200)              


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers from Reserves - Operating (3,000)           (3,000)           


TOTAL SOURCES OF OPERATING FUNDS         (621,380)            53,149 (568,231)       


USES OF OPERATING FUNDS


COUNCIL EXPENSES
2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums 11,000           11,000           
2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel 6,000             6,000             
2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc


Training, memberships, and general 2,000             2,000             
Remembrance Day program 250                250                


Christmas 500                500                
Council breakfast at Glenwood Days 750                750                


3,500             -                    3,500             


ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin 89,100           -                    89,100           
2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO


General 1,750             1,750             
LGAA Conference 1,000             1,000             


Emergency Management 250                250                
Muniware Out of Scope & Training 1,000             1,000             


4,000             -                    4,000             
2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin 6,200             -                    6,200             
2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin 13,200           -                    13,200           
2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin 2,500             500                3,000             
2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census -                    500                500                by-election
2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training Admin


General 1,000             1,000             
Emergency Management 500                500                


Muniware Out of Scope & Training 500                500                
ARB Training 3,000             (3,000)           -                    Done in-house through ORRSC


5,000             (3,000)           2,000             
2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Admin 1,500             1,500             
2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Admin 1,000             1,000             
2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin


Photocopier rental 2,700             2,700             
Photocopying 1,200             1,200             


General 1,400             1,400             
Alberta Southwest membership 200                200                


AUMA 1,100             1,100             


6,600             -                    6,600             
2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin


Muniware support 4,100             4,100             
Outsourced CFO 13,000           13,000           


Annual financial audit 10,200           10,200           
Legal 3,000             3,000             


General 3,000             3,000             


Adjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


Printed on 2020-05-12 Page 1 of 4







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


33,300           -                    33,300           
2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin 2,500             2,500             
2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin 600                600                
2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin 13,800           13,800           
2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles 200                200                
2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Maintenance Admin 800                800                
2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin 8,200             8,200             
2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin 2,750             2,750             
2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin 1,300             1,300             
2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power 2,750             2,750             
2-12-00-00-00-541 Admin Utilities Gas 1,500             1,500             
2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin 2,750             2,750             
2-12-00-00-00-999 Admin - Amortization 224,400         224,400         


PROTECTIVE SERVICES EXPENSES
2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages 1,000             -                    1,000             
2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire 50                  50                  
2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc 2,000             2,000             
2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies 50                  50                  
2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power 1,950             1,950             
2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas 1,900             1,900             
2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition CCES 11,300           11,300           
2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services 1,200             1,200             
2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services 500                500                


TRANSPORTATION SERVICES EXPENSES
Shop:


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool 2,700             (100)              2,600             
2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool 200                -                    200                
2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool 200                -                    200                
2-31-00-00-00-110 V Maint Wages 13,700           (500)              13,200           
2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main 900                (100)              800                
2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits V-Maint 1,000             -                    1,000             
2-31-00-00-00-250 V Maint Contracted Services 2,000             (4,500)           (2,500)           
2-31-00-00-00-510 V Maint Tools, Hardware, Op 2,000             2,000             
2-31-00-00-00-524 V Maint Equipment Supplies 2,000             2,000             
2-31-00-00-00-526 V Maint Equipment Supply Tractor 800                800                
2-31-00-00-00-527 V Maint Fuel 3,100             3,100             
2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear 500                500                
2-31-00-00-00-620 Operating Revenue to Capital Reserve -                    -                    
2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop PW 900                900                
2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone PW 900                900                


Roads & streets:


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Road & Streets 17,200           (700)              16,500           
2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Roads 1,100             -                    1,100             
2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Roads 1,200             -                    1,200             
2-32-00-00-00-250 Roads & Streets Contracted Services 2,000             2,000             
2-32-00-00-00-260 Roads & Streets Goods & Services 1,000             1,000             
2-32-00-00-00-530 Roads & Streets Maint Materials 1,000             1,000             
2-32-00-00-00-540 Roads & Streets Utilities 12,000           12,000           


ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES EXPENSES
Irrigation:


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation 6,900             (300)              6,600             
2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services 500                500                
2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint 750                4,000             4,750             Replace irrigation meter (reallocated from capital)
2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power 3,600             3,600             


Water:


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water 29,500           (800)              28,700           
2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water 2,600             (100)              2,500             
2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water 2,300             -                    2,300             
2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel 3,000             3,000             
2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant 1,100             1,100             
2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services 11,000           11,000           
2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint


General 3,500             (3,000)           500                Adj. to reflect historical
Annual turbine maintenance 2,500             2,500             


Genset maintenance 1,600             1,600             


7,600             (3,000)           4,600             
2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc 1,500             1,500             
2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service 6,500             6,500             
2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power 10,700           10,700           
2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas 3,800             3,800             
2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount 3,500             3,500             


Waste water:


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer 2,700             (100)              2,600             
2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer 200                -                    200                
2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer 200                -                    200                
2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services 5,250             5,250             
2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services 250                250                
2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount 250                250                


Waste management:


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services 250                250                
2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services 250                250                
2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition 7,100             1,087             8,187             To reflect the actual requisition
2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station 3,300             750                4,050             To reflect the actual requisition


CEMETERY EXPENSES
2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery 2,100             (100)              2,000             
2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services 3,250             3,250             
2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power 1,100             1,100             
2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves 500                500                


Printed on 2020-05-12 Page 2 of 4







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services 500                500                
2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS 1,730             1,730             
2-76-00-00-00-252 Development Expenses


ORRSC annual requisition 3,200             3,200             
Chinook Intermunicipal SDAB membership 500                500                


SDAB training 1,500             (1,500)           -                    No longer needed - ORRSC doing this in-house
ORRSC land-use bylaw update 2,020             2,020             To reflect actual invoice from ORRSC


5,200             520                5,720             


RECREATION & CULTURE EXPENSES
Parks & Recreation:


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc 500                500                
2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks 3,000             3,000             
2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec 2,000             -                    2,000             
2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (vlg use only)


General 3,650             (1,150)           2,500             To reflect anticipated amount needed
Fortis tree replacement 2,500             2,500             


6,150             (1,150)           5,000             
2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power 1,000             1,000             
2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas 800                800                


Library:


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services 1,000             1,000             
2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services 500                500                
2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support 15,300           15,300           
2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library 2,500             2,500             


Community Hall:


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Centre 2,700             (100)              2,600             
2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Center Contracted Service 500                500                
2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Center Goods & Service 1,000             1,000             
2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Centre Utilities Power 1,500             1,500             
2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Centre Utilities Gas 1,125             1,125             


Pioneer Parlour:


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour 18,500           (18,500)         -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP 500                (500)              -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services 1,500             (1,500)           -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses 1,000             (1,000)           -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services 19,900           (19,900)         -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power 1,700             (1,700)           -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19
2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas 1,100             (1,100)           -                    Parlour will remain closed due to Covid-19


Post Office:


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power 500                500                
2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas 375                375                


COMMUNITY SUPPORT REQUISITIONS
2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing 5,585             5,585             


Printed on 2020-05-12 Page 3 of 4







VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD
2020 Mill Rate Budget


Account Account Name Budget Item Explanations for ChangesAdjustments Mill Rate Budget2020


Mill RateResolution # 2019.12.210


2-62-00-00-00-206 Community Services - Communities in Bloom 2,000             2,000             
2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Society Requisition 1,500             1,500             
2-62-00-00-00-209 Glenwood Seniors Requisition 500                500                
2-62-00-00-00-210 Community Services - FCSS 2,446             2,446             
2-62-00-00-00-750 Farm Safety Centre Donation 300                300                
2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Board Requistion 1,500             (1,000)           500                Covid-19
2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation 6,000             (171)              5,829             To reflect actual requisition amount
2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist 4,400             400                4,800             To reflect prior year actual
2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation 73,100           (1,954)           71,146           To reflect actual requisition amount
2-98-00-00-00-116 Designated Industrial Property Requisition 47                  (2)                  45                  To reflect actual requisition amount


2-12-00-00-00-763 OPERATING TRANSFER TO RESERVES


General 972                971                1,943             To reflect changes to budget
Emergency management reserves 3,000             3,000             


3,972             971                4,943             


TOTAL USES OF OPERATING FUNDS 845,780         (53,149)         792,631         


Less: Amortization (224,400)       -                    (224,400)       


NET (SOURCES) USES OF OPERATING FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDS
1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (211,850)       (10,000)         (221,850)       To reflect changes to capital budget funding
1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF (130,000)       11,000           (119,000)       To reflect changes to capital budget funding


TOTAL SOURCES OF CAPITAL FUNDS (341,850)       1,000             (340,850)       


USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS
2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfers to Capital


IT upgrades 10,750           10,750           


10,750           -                    10,750           
2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Services - Transfer to Capital


Repairs to gas line at Fire Hall 2,000             2,000             
Inverter / generator 2,000             2,000             


4,000             -                    4,000             
2-32-00-00-00-762 Streets - Transfer to Capital


Miscellaneous drainage 46,400           46,400           
Main Avenue road rebuild 110,000         9,000             119,000         To reflect updated quote of $114k plus $5k for parking


Crack sealing 25,000           25,000           


181,400         9,000             190,400         
2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital


Irrigation pumphouse meter 5,000             (5,000)           -                    


5,000             (5,000)           -                    
2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital


WTP valve upgrade 65,000           65,000           
WTP Pump 4 replacement 30,000           30,000           


WTP WIN 911 alarm software 6,700             6,700             
Additional fire hydrants 15,000           (15,000)         -                    Reallocated to out-of-town water meters


Out-of-town water meters 4,000             15,000           19,000           
Water valves for rural water lines 3,000             3,000             


123,700         -                    123,700         
2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital


Manholes 12,000           12,000           


12,000           -                    12,000           
2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Center - Transfer to Capital


Parking at post office 5,000             (5,000)           -                    Reallocated to 2-32-762


5,000             (5,000)           -                    


TOTAL USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS 341,850         (1,000)           340,850         


NET (SOURCES) USES OF CAPITAL FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


NET(SOURCES) USES OF FUNDS -                    -                    -                    


Printed on 2020-05-12 Page 4 of 4








 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 1 of 7 
 


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD 
BYLAW # 245-2020 


 


Rates, Fees and Charges Bylaw 
 
BEING A BYLAW OF THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO ESTABLISH 
SERVICE FEES IN THE VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD. 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 2000 and amendments 
thereto, permits the municipality to pass and enforce bylaws for municipal purposes respecting 
the safety, health and welfare of the people and the protection of people and property; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 2000 and amendments 
thereto, provides for Council to pass and enforce bylaws for the municipal purposes respecting 
services provided by or on behalf of the municipality; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 2000 and amendments 
thereto, provides that a Council, by bylaw, may establish fees; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council recognizes the benefit of adopting a Schedule of Fees; 
 
AND WHEREAS Council deems it expedient from time to time to revise the Schedule of Fees for 
municipal services; 
 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of the 
Village of Glenwood, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
1. TITLE AND DEFINITIONS: 


 
1.1 Title – This bylaw may be cited as the “Rates, Fees and Charges Bylaw”. 


 
1.2 Definitions– In this bylaw unless the context otherwise requires: 


(a) Act – the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M-26, R.S.A. 2000 and 
amendments thereto; 


(b) Council – the Council of the Village of Glenwood; 
(c) Village – the Village of Glenwood; 
(d) Resident – either an individual or a family that resides within the Village of 


Glenwood; 
(e) Rural Residential – either an individual or a family that does not reside within 


the Village boundaries; 
(f) Rural Commercial – a commercial service located outside Village boundaries; 
(g) Non-Profit – any group or organization that has a registered society number, 


groups without a society number and who provide a valued service to the Village 
may be included subject to the approval of Administration; 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 2 of 7 
 


(h) Other – all individuals who do not qualify for the non-profit rate. 
 
 
2. INTENTION: 


 
2.1 It is the intention of the Village Council that each separate provision of this bylaw shall 


be deemed independent of all other provisions herein and it is further the intention of 
the Village Council that if any provision of the bylaw be declared invalid, all other 
provisions thereof shall remain valid and enforceable. 


 
2.2 This bylaw relates to the fees, rates, and charges for the various services provided by 


the Village.  Penalties are not addressed in this bylaw, but are determined by the 
bylaw, policy, or circumstances specifically relevant to the occurrence. 


 
 
3. FEES: 


 
3.1 The user of any Village facility and/or service shall pay the Village the applicable fee, as 


stated in Schedule A which is attached to and forms part of this bylaw 
 
 
4. RESCINDING BYLAW: 


 
4.1 Bylaw 245-2019 is hereby repealed. 


 
 
5. DATE OF COMMENCEMENT: 


 
5.1 Once passed, this bylaw shall come into effect on July 1, 2020. 


 
Read a FIRST time this _____  day of _____, 2020. 
Read a SECOND time this _____ day of _____, 2020. 
Read a THIRD time and finally passed this _____ day of _____, 2020. 
 
 
   


Albert Elias  Marilee Campbell 
Mayor  Chief Administrative Officer 


 
 
 
 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 3 of 7 
 


SCHEDULE “A” 
FEES: 
1. ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES FEES: 


 
1.1 Tax Certificate $30.00 
1.2 NSF Cheque $35.00 
1.3 Photocopying/printing (single sided letter or legal-size sheet) $0.20 
1.4 Photocopying/printing (double sided letter or legal-size sheet) $0.40 
1.5 Photocopying/printing (single sided 11x17 size sheet) $0.50 
1.6 Photocopying/printing (double sided 11x17 size sheet) $1.00 
1.7 Color Photocopying/printing (single sided letter or legal-size 


sheet) 
$0.25 


1.8 Color Photocopying/printing (double sided letter or legal-size 
sheet) 


$0.50 


1.9 Color Photocopying/printing (single sided 11x17 size sheet) $1.00 
1.10 Color Photocopying/printing (double sided 11x17 size sheet) $2.00 
1.11 Faxing:  


(a) Per page (outgoing) $0.50 
(b) Per page (incoming) $1.00 
(c) Long distance (additional charge per document) $0.50 


1.12 Title Searches $50.00 
1.13 Property Information Request 


(Assessment & Real Estate Companies) 
$20.00 


1.14 Regional Assessment Review Board Complaint $50.00 
1.15 Composite Assessment Review Board Complaint $50.00 
1.16 Trash Moving Service (per hour)  $150.00 
1.17 Advertising space in village newsletter (per year):  


                     (a) Business Card size $12.00 
(b) Quarter Page size (double business card size) $24.00 
(c) Half Page size $48.00 


1.18 FOIP Request Fee:  
(a) Initial Request Fee concerning your personal information $0.00 
(b) Initial Request Fee for all other requests $25.00 
(c) Other information request:  


(i) For searching for, locating and retrieving a record: $7.00 per ¼hr 
or part thereof 


(ii) For producing an electronic copy of an electronic 
record: 


$7.00 per ¼hr 
or part thereof 


(iii) For producing a black and white paper copy of a 
record (per single sided sheet): 


$0.20 


(iv) For producing a colour paper copy of a record (per 
single sided sheet): 


$0.25 


(v) For supervising the examination of a record: $7.00 per ¼hr 
or part thereof 


 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 4 of 7 
 


2. BUSINESS LICENCING: 


 
2.1 Business Licence (Yearly):  


(a) Village Only - voluntary $20.00 
(b) Regional – voluntary Additional 


$80.00 
 
3. BYLAW ENFORCEMENT: 


 
3.1 Dog Licence (Spayed or Neutered) Not Applicable 
3.2 Dog Licence (Not Spayed or Neutered) Not Applicable 
3.3 Enforcement & Care Expense (as per Dog Bylaw) Not Applicable 
3.4 Land Use Bylaw enforcement (per occurrence) $50 


 
4. COMMUNITY SERVICES – CEMETERY: 


 
4.1 Cemetery Marker Fee $30.00 
4.2 Plot Purchase Price:  


(a) Resident Interment* $120.00 
 *Resident means a resident, or former resident of Cardston County or a municipality within 


Cardston County, and their spouse or adult interdependent partner, children, grand-
children, parents, and the parents of the spouse or adult interdependent partner.  Proof of 
relationship may be required at Administration’s discretion. 


(b) Resident Infant Interment $0.00 
(c) Other Interment $1,000.00 


 
5. ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES: 


 
5.1 Bulk Water:  


(a) Per 50 imperial gallons or part thereof $1.00 
(b) Per 250 imperial gallons $3.00 
(c) Per 500 imperial gallons $6.00 
(d) Per 1000 imperial gallons $12.00 


5.2 Lot driveway approach installation: 
*The right and responsibility of installation for any and all property approaches is solely the 
Village’s. 


(a) Initial installation $0.00 
(b) Culvert required (maximum 300 MM diameter x 7 


meters long provided) 
$1,500.00 


(c) Culvert not required $1,000.00 
(d) No ditch present property at grade with roadway (+/- 


0.5ft or 0.15m) 
$500.00 


 
6. MUNICIPAL UTILITY RATES: 


 
6.1 Rates – per monthly billing base standard rate: 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 5 of 7 
 


(a) Commercial:  
(i) Water $26.00 
(ii) Sewer $14.00 
(iii) Solid Waste $8.00 
(iv) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(b) Industrial:  
(i) Water Flat Charge $104.00 
(ii) Water Consumption per Imperial Gallon $0.003 
(iii) Sewer $28.00 
(iv) Solid Waste $120.00 
(v) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(c) Church (Institutional):  
(i) Water $52.00 
(ii) Sewer $14.00 
(iii) Solid Waste $48.00 
(iv) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(d) School (Institutional):  
(i) Water $104.00 
(ii) Sewer $28.00 
(iii) Solid Waste $64.00 
(iv) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(e) Residential (multi-unit per unit):  
(i) Water $26.00 
(ii) Sewer $14.00 
(iii) Solid Waste $8.00 
(iv) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(f) Residential (single detached):  
(i) Water $26.00 
(ii) Sewer $14.00 
(iii) Solid Waste $8.00 
(iv) Irrigation (per acre or part thereof rate) $8.00 


(g) Rural Residential: (charge will include flat charge plus gallons used) 
(i) Water Flat Charge $40.00 
(ii) Water Consumption per Imperial Gallon 


(4.54 litres) 
*When water metre installed. 


$0.0045 


(h) Rural Commercial: (water charge will include flat charge plus gallons used) 
(i)       Water Flat Charge $156.00 
(ii)      Water Consumption per Imperial Gallon (4.54 
litres)  


$0.0045 


6.2 New Main Connection Fee – per individual service: 
*If Main adjacent to property. 
**From Municipal Utility Bylaw Section 3.2:  Any property Owner who desires a Water 
and/or Sewer Service Connection, from the Village, shall apply to the Administrator and 
pay the required Service Connection fee(s) as indicated in Schedule “A” before work on 
either Connection commences. 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 6 of 7 
 


(a) Water Service Install - inside Village boundaries $2,000.00 
(b) Water Service Install - inside Village boundaries 


(requiring asphalt road surface work-a quote will be 
provided to property owner before work is scheduled) 


$2,000.00 
*the cost 
to repair 


asphalt 
road is an 
additional 


charge 
(c) Water Service Install - outside Village boundaries  Cost plus 


10% 
(d) Sewer Service Install $2,000.00 
(e) Irrigation Service Install (no roadwork) $1,000.00 
(f) Irrigation Service Install (roadwork required) $2,000.00 


6.3 Water Connection/Disconnection Fee – per connection/disconnection: 
*If the Water connection/disconnection is a direct result of an Emergency the associated 
fee will be waived. 


(a) Due to non-payment of account $100.00 
(b) Due to customer request $30.00 


6.4 End of year transfer of utility arrears to taxes $20.00 
 
 
7. OPERATIONAL SERVICES: 


 
7.1 Equipment Rental per hour rate or part thereof: 


*Operated by village staff and subject to schedule availability. 


(a) Grader $200.00 
(b) Large Tractor $150.00 
(c) Large Tractor with mower $175.00 
(d) Packer $125.00 
(e) Small Tractor with mower $125.00 
(f) Skid steer with or without Attachment $125.00 
(g) Weed Whipping $50.00 
(h) Wood Chipper $50.00 


 
8. LAND USE, PLANNING & SUBDIVISION: 


 
8.1 Letter or Certificate of Compliance $50.00 
8.2 Development Application Fee – single unit dwelling $50.00 
8.3 Development Application Fee – garage, deck, carport, shed, 


accessory building, storage container, etc 
$15.00 


8.4 Development Application Fee – modular/manufactured homes $50.00 
8.5 Development Application Fee – residential additions, multi-


unit dwellings (per unit), special residential uses including half-
way houses, group homes, day care, nursing homes, etc 


$50.00 


8.6 Development Application Fee – Commercial/Industrial $200.00 







 


 


Village of Glenwood BYLAW # 245-2020 Page 7 of 7 
 


8.7 Development Application Fee – all public service buildings $200.00 
8.8 Request to convene a special meeting of the Subdivision and 


Development Appeal Board (SDAB) or the Municipal Planning 
Commission (MPC) 


$300.00 


8.9 Regional Subdivision & Development Appeal Board Fee (of 
which $150 will be refunded if appeal is successful) 


$300.00 


8.10 Printed copy of Land Use Bylaw $15.00 
8.11 Waiver Request or Discretionary $125.00 
8.12 Land Use Bylaw Amendment Fee (per title) $500.00 
8.13 Where a development has been commenced prior to a 


development application being approved, or when a stop 
order has been issued pursuant to the Land Use Bylaw, the fee 
for any subsequent application for that development shall be 
twice the amount specified in this bylaw for that use. 


 


 
9. RECREATIONAL SERVICES: 


 
9.1 Bleachers:  


(a) Rental per day $50.00 
(b) Rental per day damage deposit $100.00 


9.2 Glenwood Community Hall:  
(a) Rental per day $50.00 
(b) Rental per day damage deposit $100.00 
(c) Rental per day (For 6 or more dates in one booking) $25.00 


per date booked 
(d) Rental (Non-Profit Community Group) $0.00 


9.3 Village Park Kitchen:  
(a) Rental per day $50.00 
(b) Rental per day damage deposit $100.00 


 


 


 


 


 








 3:55:09PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-May-11Cheque Listing For Council


Page 1 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190668 2020-04-02 CAMPBELL, MARILEE PAYMENT  556.79


2020.03 CELL PHONE, OFFICE, TRAINING, MTG, WTP 556.79 


 20190669 2020-04-02 CANADA REVENUE AGENCY PAYMENT  4,104.79


2020*MAR 2020 MARCH PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS  4,104.79 


 20190670 2020-04-02 CARTER, GERALD PAYMENT  268.00


2020*MAR COUNCIL TRAVEL  268.00 


 20190671 2020-04-02 CUMMINS CANADA ULC PAYMENT  1,513.20


BQ-7963 ANNUAL INSP. WTP GEN SET  1,513.20 


 20190672 2020-04-02 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  358.21


245553 PHOTO COPIES  100.01 


251468 PHOTO COPIES  258.20 


 20190673 2020-04-02 ELIAS, ALBERT PAYMENT  115.17


2020*MAR COUNCIL TRAVEL  115.17 


 20190674 2020-04-02 HACH SALES & SERVICE CANADA LTD. PAYMENT  765.06


218851/32317559 WTP SUPPLIES  765.06 


 20190675 2020-04-02 HOLTHE, ELIZABETH PAYMENT  350.00


2020*MAR* CH COMM. HALL CLEANING  350.00 


 20190676 2020-04-02 KINAHAN, CARRIE PAYMENT  166.20


2020-MAR SUPPLIES  166.20 


 20190677 2020-04-02 LETHBRIDGE TRUCK TERMINALS PAYMENT  114.88


179236 DELIVERY OF CHEMICALS  114.88 


 20190678 2020-04-02 LYBBERT, BARTON PAYMENT  41.30


2020*MAR COUNCIL TRAVEL  41.30 


 20190679 2020-04-02 LYBBERT, MYRON PAYMENT  91.30


2020*MAR COUNCIL TRAVEL  91.30 


 20190680 2020-04-02 MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC. PAYMENT  304.51


20200085 APRIL SUPPORT  304.51 


 20190681 2020-04-02 RMA- RURAL MUNICIPALITIES OF ALBERTA PAYMENT  10.49


53003063 OFFICE SUPPLIES  10.49 


 20190682 2020-04-02 ROLFSON, DAVID PAYMENT  158.12


2020*MAR COUNCIL TRAVEL  158.12 


 20190683 2020-04-02 SILVER AUTOMOTIVE (CARDSTON) LTD. PAYMENT  8.09


23052410 WTP SHOP TOWELS  8.09 


 20190684 2020-04-02 SKOIEN PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION PAYMENT  5,276.25


INV - 0595 CFO FEES  5,276.25 


 20190685 2020-04-02 T.L.C. VENTURES INC. PAYMENT  892.50


203 ANNUAL SWAN TRIDES ANALYZER CALIBRATE & INSPECT 892.50 


 20190686 2020-04-02 TWINPRO INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS PAYMENT  1,062.78


33719 CHEMICAL  531.39 


33778 CHEMICALS  531.39 


 20190687 2020-04-02 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  220.36


5009606619 04/29/2020 - 05/28/2020  220.36 


 20190689 2020-04-23 ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION PAYMENT  4,376.67


20-1033349 UTILITIES  4,376.67 


 20190690 2020-04-23 AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD PAYMENT  2,954.32


0172-14 APRIL & MAY BENEFITS  2,954.32 


 20190691 2020-04-23 CANDU AUTOMATION & CONTROL SOLUTIONS PAYMENT  2,205.31


1535 WATER TREATMENT PLANT COMPUTER  864.02 


1540 UPS  REPLACED  1,341.29 


 20190692 2020-04-23 CHIEF MOUNTAIN GAS CO-OP LTD PAYMENT  1,426.14







 3:55:09PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-May-11Cheque Listing For Council


Page 2 of 2


Cheque #


Cheque


Date Vendor Name Invoice # Invoice Description


Invoice 


Amount


Cheque 


Amount


 20190692 2020-04-23 CHIEF MOUNTAIN GAS CO-OP LTD 27443 REPAIR & MOVE FURNACE SWITCH  274.34  1,426.14


28041 OFFICE & LIBRARY FURNACE REPAIR  1,151.80 


 20190693 2020-04-23 CHIEF MOUNTAIN REG. SOLID WASTE AUTH. PAYMENT  4,093.78


1ST HALF 1ST OF 2 INSTALLMENTS SOLID WASTE 4,093.78 


 20190694 2020-04-23 GREGG DISTRIBUTORS  LP PAYMENT  69.69


055-172632 SANITIZER COVID 19  69.69 


 20190695 2020-04-23 KOST FIRE EQUIPMENT. LTD. PAYMENT  238.30


510025616 SAFETY WEAR  238.30 


 20190696 2020-04-23 MICROAGE, 1218450 ALBERTA LTD. PAYMENT  10,573.71


17187 ADMIN COMPUTERS -  6,149.64 


17188 OFFICE SERVER  4,121.67 


17189 COMPUTER PROGRAM  302.40 


 20190697 2020-04-23 PINCHER CREEK CO-OP PAYMENT  67.18


00214931A SHOP TOOLS, COM. HALL  67.18 


 20190698 2020-04-23 RONA PINCHER CREEK PAYMENT  44.05


176811-1 OFFICE SHELFING  44.05 


 20190699 2020-04-23 SPRING GLEN PARK ASSOCIATION PAYMENT  1,500.00


000002-R-0001 2020 YEARLY REQ  1,500.00 


 20190700 2020-04-23 WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO PAYMENT  220.36


5010009840 05/29/2020 - 06/28/2020  220.36 


 20190701 2020-04-23 CDI SPACES PAYMENT  706.65


SIN018419R TABLES  706.65 


 20190702 2020-04-23 SCOUT, MS SANDRA M PAYMENT  50.00


REFUND RENTAL REFUND APRIL 11 RENTAL DUE TO COVID 19 50.00 


 20190703 2020-04-29 ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD PAYMENT  1,236.41


2020 - APR WTP TRAVEL, CELL PHONE, POSTAGE, ICS VESTS, OFFICE 1,236.41 


 20190704 2020-04-29 DIGITAL CONNECTION INC. PAYMENT  103.01


254764 PHOTOCOPIES  103.01 


 20190705 2020-04-29 GREGG DISTRIBUTORS  LP PAYMENT  12.20


055-173838 OFFICE CLEANER  12.20 


 20190706 2020-04-29 OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMM. PAYMENT  2,020.00


11089 LAND USE BINDERS & MEETING SUPPORT 2,020.00 


 20190707 2020-04-29 TOWN OF CARDSTON PAYMENT  2,446.00


2020-FCSS 2020 - FCSS CONTRIBUTIONS  2,446.00 


 20190708 2020-04-29 HUNSPERGER, PERRY


 20190709 2020-04-29 EDWARDS, JANET


 20190710 2020-04-29 KINAHAN, CARRIE


 20190711 2020-04-29 CARTER, GERALD


 20190712 2020-04-29 ELIAS, JONAS


 20190713 2020-04-29 LYBBERT, BART


 20190714 2020-04-29 ROLFSON, DAVID


 20190715 2020-04-29 CAMPBELL, ELIZA M


*** End of Report ***


Total  60,952.70



CAO

Typewriter

Cheque #20190688 dated March 31, 2020 payable to Canada Revenue Agency for $43.64








 4:18:39PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 1 of 10


Tax Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-102 Taxes - Chinook Foundation (5,520.07) (5,871.00) (5,847.32) (6,000.00)  0.00 (6,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-103 Taxes - Non-Residential (49,488.39) (51,968.00) (52,143.99) (53,000.00)  0.00 (53,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-105 Taxes - Linear (12,961.37) (13,656.00) (14,004.13) (13,900.00)  0.00 (13,900.00)


1-00-00-00-00-108 Taxes - Residential (217,615.50) (228,958.00) (227,298.55) (233,500.00)  0.00 (233,500.00)


1-00-00-00-00-110 Taxes - M&E (21,706.20) (22,806.00) (22,805.99) (23,300.00)  0.00 (23,300.00)


1-00-00-00-00-130 Taxes - Policing  0.00  0.00  0.00 (5,585.00)  0.00 (5,585.00)


*        TOTAL Tax Revenue (307,291.53) (323,259.00) (322,099.98) (335,285.00) 0.00 (335,285.00)


General Government Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-590 Other Revenue from Own Sources (350.00) (300.00) (1,221.00) (300.00)  0.00 (300.00)


1-12-00-00-00-410 Photocopy,Fax, etc Revenue (266.55) (180.00) (172.05) (180.00) (216.25)  36.25 


1-12-00-00-00-433 Assessment Appeal Deposit (50.00)  0.00 (50.00) (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-525 License - Business (160.00) (240.00) (280.00) (240.00) (140.00) (100.00)


1-12-00-00-00-561 Xplornet (2,788.80) (2,000.00) (2,970.46) (2,000.00) (1,241.40) (758.60)


1-00-00-00-00-510 Taxes - Penalties & Costs (4,370.61) (4,000.00) (1,893.08) (4,000.00) (1,824.77) (2,175.23)


1-00-00-00-00-541 Franchise & Concession ATCO Revenue (3,322.30) (8,800.00) (26,067.53) (9,000.00) (8,345.93) (654.07)


1-00-00-00-00-550 Return on Investments (3,153.87) (3,500.00) (5,804.40) (3,500.00) (1,459.91) (2,040.09)


*        TOTAL General Gov't Revenue (14,462.13) (19,020.00) (38,458.52) (19,320.00) (13,228.26) (6,091.74)


Operating Grant Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-748 Grant Misc (9,345.03) (1,500.00) (1,500.00) (2,500.00)  649.00 (3,149.00)


1-00-00-00-00-751 GRANTS - ACP INTERMUNICIPAL (17,354.25)  0.00 (4,414.89) (1,000.00)  0.00 (1,000.00)


1-00-00-00-00-843 Grant - MSI Operational (34,832.00) (34,832.00) (34,147.00) (34,000.00)  0.00 (34,000.00)


*        TOTAL Operating Grant Revenue (61,531.28) (36,332.00) (40,061.89) (37,500.00) 649.00 (38,149.00)







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 2 of 10


Protective Services Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-990 Other Rev - NSF,  Fines, Lease (665.00) (200.00) (35.00) (200.00) (10.00) (190.00)


*        TOTAL Protective Services Rev (665.00) (200.00) (35.00) (200.00) (10.00) (190.00)


Transportation Service Revenue


1-30-00-00-00-410 Equipment Pool Revenue (400.00)  0.00 (110.00) (200.00)  0.00 (200.00)


1-32-00-00-00-591 Snow Removal Roads & Streets (80.00) (100.00) (400.00) (100.00) (80.00) (20.00)


*        TOTAL Trans Service Revenue (480.00) (100.00) (510.00) (300.00) (80.00) (220.00)


Water Revenue


1-41-00-00-00-120 Water Connection Install  0.00  0.00 (5,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 


1-41-00-00-00-121 Water On/Off Fee (240.00) (100.00) (270.00) (100.00) (90.00) (10.00)


1-41-00-00-00-410 Sales - Water (105,061.11) (108,000.00) (123,579.31) (110,200.00) (40,349.68) (69,850.32)


1-41-00-00-00-411 Water - Bulk Sales (3,594.04) (3,000.00) (3,578.42) (3,000.00) (735.63) (2,264.37)


1-41-00-00-00-510 Water - Penalties & Costs (411.91) (500.00) (222.93) (500.00) (56.96) (443.04)


*        TOTAL Water Revenue (109,307.06) (111,600.00) (132,650.66) (114,800.00) (42,232.27) (72,567.73)


Irrigation Revenue


1-40-00-00-00-410 Sales - Irrigation (9,522.50) (10,000.00) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (3,852.16) (6,347.84)


*        TOTAL Irrigation Revenue (9,522.50) (10,000.00) (11,292.32) (10,200.00) (3,852.16) (6,347.84)


Sewer Revenue


1-42-00-00-00-120 Sewer Connection Install  0.00  0.00 (2,000.00) (1,000.00) (1,000.00)  0.00 


1-42-00-00-00-410 Sales - Sewer (26,831.66) (23,500.00) (22,578.00) (24,000.00) (7,494.00) (16,506.00)


1-42-00-00-00-411 Sales - Sewer RV Dumping Station (3,092.75) (3,000.00) (3,126.35) (3,000.00) (117.00) (2,883.00)


1-42-00-00-00-412 Sewer RV Campground Agreements (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (4,000.00) (25.00) (3,975.00)


*        TOTAL Sewer Revenue (33,924.41) (30,500.00) (31,704.35) (32,000.00) (8,636.00) (23,364.00)







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 3 of 10


Waste Management  Revenue


1-43-00-00-00-410 Sales - Solid Waste (12,015.00) (12,000.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (10,894.67) (1,105.33)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Rev (12,015.00) (12,000.00) (12,992.00) (12,000.00) (10,894.67) (1,105.33)


Cemetery Revenue


1-56-00-00-00-410 Cemetery - Plots & Fees (1,260.00) (600.00) (1,130.00) (600.00) (225.00) (375.00)


1-56-00-00-00-420 Cemetery - Donations (2,040.00)  0.00 (1,250.00) (500.00) (2,393.55)  1,893.55 


1-56-00-00-00-430 Cemetery County Contribution  0.00  0.00  0.00 (1,375.00)  0.00 (1,375.00)


*        TOTAL Cemetery Revenue (3,300.00) (600.00) (2,380.00) (2,475.00) (2,618.55) 143.55


Recreation & Culture Revenue


1-74-02-00-00-560 Rentals Community Hall (1,175.00) (1,000.00) (1,988.75) (1,000.00) (350.00) (650.00)


1-72-00-00-00-410 Sales & Services - Recreation (100.00) (100.00) (399.50) (100.00)  0.00 (100.00)


1-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Revenue (42,867.91) (47,600.00) (45,806.31) (47,600.00)  0.00 (47,600.00)


1-74-04-00-00-410 Pioneer Days funds-fireworks donations (200.00)  0.00 (2,950.00) (3,000.00) (181.00) (2,819.00)


1-74-05-00-00-474 Post Office Rental Revenue  0.00 (1,400.00) (1,400.00) (2,400.00) (1,000.00) (1,400.00)


*        TOTAL Rec & Culture Rev (44,342.91) (50,100.00) (52,544.56) (54,100.00) (1,531.00) (52,569.00)


Planning & Development Revenue


1-12-00-00-00-490 Permit - Dev/Compliance (1,350.00) (200.00)  415.00 (200.00) (125.00) (75.00)


1-95-00-00-00-763 Transfers From Reserves - Operating  0.00  0.00  0.00 (3,000.00)  0.00 (3,000.00)


*        TOTAL Planning & Development R (1,350.00) (200.00) 415.00 (3,200.00) (125.00) (3,075.00)


**       TOTAL Revenue (598,191.82) (593,911.00) (644,314.28) (621,380.00) (82,558.91) (538,821.09)







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 4 of 10


Council Expenses


2-11-00-00-00-153 Council Honorariums  10,050.00  11,000.00  10,700.00  11,000.00  2,300.00  8,700.00 


2-11-00-00-00-213 Council Travel  6,897.07  7,000.00  3,826.16  6,000.00  1,253.08  4,746.92 


2-11-00-00-00-520 Council Misc  3,772.50  4,000.00  2,322.89  3,500.00  397.96  3,102.04 


*        TOTAL Council Expenses 20,719.57 22,000.00 16,849.05 20,500.00 3,951.04 16,548.96


Administration Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Admin  117,586.80  86,500.00  84,671.54  89,100.00  29,707.96  59,392.04 


2-12-00-00-00-113 Travel & Training - CAO  3,838.92  4,000.00  2,895.42  4,000.00  1,362.47  2,637.53 


2-12-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Admin  4,596.92  5,500.00  6,119.31  6,200.00  2,106.48  4,093.52 


2-12-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Admin  14,869.79  13,100.00  15,592.87  13,200.00  5,628.88  7,571.12 


2-12-00-00-00-142 Workers Compensation Admin  2,063.23  2,500.00  2,551.22  2,500.00  2,157.04  342.96 


2-12-00-00-00-150 Election & Census  409.03  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-12-00-00-00-210 Travel & Training - ADMIN  1,823.11  1,500.00  1,366.96  5,000.00  0.00  5,000.00 


2-12-00-00-00-215 Telephone Land Line Admin  1,003.01  1,500.00  1,044.19  1,500.00  177.29  1,322.71 


2-12-00-00-00-216 Fax Land Line Admin  779.87  1,000.00  891.36  1,000.00  151.05  848.95 


2-12-00-00-00-220 Advert, Printing, Memberships Admin  5,927.09  6,700.00  5,863.37  6,600.00  3,047.76  3,552.24 


2-12-00-00-00-230 Professional & Consulting Admin  33,559.89  40,000.00  34,959.05  33,300.00  6,285.04  27,014.96 


2-12-00-00-00-235 Postage & Freight Admin  2,490.83  2,500.00  2,056.94  2,500.00  406.83  2,093.17 


2-12-00-00-00-270 Misc Expense Admin  200.59  600.00  1,510.48  600.00  260.87  339.13 


2-12-00-00-00-274 Insurance Admin  17,333.80  13,500.00  13,446.10  13,800.00  17,196.17 (3,396.17)


2-12-00-00-00-280 Reg Fees Land Titles  236.00  200.00  90.00  200.00  20.00  180.00 


2-12-00-00-00-290 Office Bldg Maintenance Admin  729.03  800.00  505.83  800.00  262.83  537.17 


2-12-00-00-00-300 Assessor Fees Admin  7,407.51  8,000.00  7,927.50  8,200.00  1,977.50  6,222.50 


2-12-00-00-00-510 Office Expense Admin  2,077.73  2,750.00  4,758.90  2,750.00  1,022.22  1,727.78 


2-12-00-00-00-520 Web Hosting Admin  1,250.00  1,300.00  1,250.00  1,300.00  0.00  1,300.00 


2-12-00-00-00-540 Administration Utilities Power  2,530.90  2,750.00  2,685.91  2,750.00  906.21  1,843.79 


2-12-00-00-00-541 Administration Utilities Gas  1,280.00  1,500.00  1,413.95  1,500.00  663.84  836.16 


2-12-00-00-00-810 Bank Charges Admin  2,677.87  2,750.00  2,729.48  2,750.00  550.70  2,199.30 


2-12-00-00-00-999 Adm - Amortization  219,863.43  220,000.00  178,644.74  224,400.00  0.00  224,400.00 


*        TOTAL Administration Expenses 444,535.35 418,950.00 372,975.12 423,950.00 73,891.14 350,058.86







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 5 of 10


Protective Services Expenses


2-23-00-00-00-110 Fire & Emergency Management wages  497.74  1,000.00  250.00  1,000.00  150.00  850.00 


2-23-00-00-00-130 Employer source deduction Fire  0.87  50.00  0.00  50.00  0.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-270 Fire Misc  2,332.54  1,000.00  361.63  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-23-00-00-00-510 Fire Goods & Supplies  95.41  50.00  0.00  50.00  0.00  50.00 


2-23-00-00-00-540 Fire Utilities Power  1,644.37  1,950.00  2,092.38  1,950.00  678.41  1,271.59 


2-23-00-00-00-541 Fire Utilities Gas  1,906.33  1,900.00  2,404.72  1,900.00  1,254.56  645.44 


2-23-00-00-00-750 Fire Requisition  6,506.64  6,667.00  6,104.64  11,300.00  6,125.70  5,174.30 


2-23-00-00-00-760 Fire Dispatch Services  836.61  1,200.00  1,150.24  1,200.00  296.25  903.75 


2-23-00-00-00-770 Victim Services  600.00  600.00  600.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Protective Services Exp 14,420.51 14,417.00 12,963.61 19,950.00 8,504.92 11,445.08


Shop Expenses


2-30-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Equip Pool  3,120.67  2,700.00  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,028.13  1,671.87 


2-30-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Equip Pool  187.30  200.00  197.70  200.00  73.96  126.04 


2-30-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Equip Pool  156.02  200.00  1,101.66  200.00  355.80 (155.80)


2-31-00-00-00-110 Village Maintenance Wages  15,716.39  13,500.00  15,508.12  13,700.00  5,140.56  8,559.44 


2-31-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions V-Main  936.58  800.00  988.33  900.00  369.86  530.14 


2-31-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefits Vlg Maint  780.46  1,000.00  970.94  1,000.00  236.44  763.56 


2-31-00-00-00-250 Vlg Maint Contracted Services  2,075.00  2,500.00  228.64  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-510 Vlg Maint Tools, Hardware, Op  1,230.39  2,000.00  993.12  2,000.00  33.42  1,966.58 


2-31-00-00-00-524 Vlg Maint Equip Supplies  2,040.54  2,000.00  2,298.06  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-526 Vlg Maint Equip Supply Tractor  987.73  800.00  920.01  800.00  0.00  800.00 


2-31-00-00-00-527 Vlg Maint Fuel  4,399.34  3,000.00  2,547.96  3,100.00  0.00  3,100.00 


2-31-00-00-00-550 Safety Gear  341.45  500.00  151.32  500.00  285.95  214.05 


2-32-00-00-00-215 Telephone Shop  778.44  900.00  589.30  900.00  151.05  748.95 


2-32-00-00-00-217 Cell Phone Foreman  907.97  900.00  1,292.00  900.00  313.46  586.54 


*        TOTAL Shop Expenses 33,658.28 31,000.00 30,888.76 30,900.00 7,988.63 22,911.37







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 6 of 10


Road & Street Expenses


2-32-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Streets & Roads  16,531.47  16,900.00  17,839.28  17,200.00  5,519.12  11,680.88 


2-32-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deduct Streets & Roads  1,017.39  1,000.00  1,041.20  1,100.00  383.89  716.11 


2-32-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deduct Streets & Roads  820.13  1,200.00  970.94  1,200.00  236.44  963.56 


2-32-00-00-00-250 Streets & Roads Contracted Services  7,535.84  2,000.00  1,177.00  2,000.00  1,229.00  771.00 


2-32-00-00-00-260 Streets & Roads Goods & Servcies  0.00  1,000.00  482.62  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-530 Streets & Roads Maint Materials  844.99  1,000.00  3,001.28  1,000.00  0.00  1,000.00 


2-32-00-00-00-540 Streetlights  10,559.86  11,000.00  12,329.42  12,000.00  4,194.20  7,805.80 


*        TOTAL Road & Street Expenses 37,309.68 34,100.00 36,841.74 35,500.00 11,562.65 23,937.35


Irrigation Expenses


2-40-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Irrigation  7,729.82  6,800.00  8,534.35  6,900.00  2,268.37  4,631.63 


2-40-00-00-00-250 Irrg System Contracted Services  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-40-00-00-00-252 Irrg System Maint  329.97  750.00  973.75  750.00  0.00  750.00 


2-40-00-00-00-540 Irrg System Utilities Power  3,248.23  3,500.00  2,598.47  3,600.00  346.52  3,253.48 


*        TOTAL Irrigation Expenses 11,308.02 11,550.00 12,106.57 11,750.00 2,614.89 9,135.11


Water Expenses


2-41-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Water  22,803.75  29,200.00  21,831.84  29,500.00  7,135.70  22,364.30 


2-41-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Water  1,730.48  2,400.00  1,763.93  2,600.00  612.98  1,987.02 


2-41-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Water  1,092.62  2,300.00  1,846.51  2,300.00  451.99  1,848.01 


2-41-00-00-00-210 Water - Seminars & Travel  1,823.34  3,000.00  3,553.10  3,000.00  959.01  2,040.99 


2-41-00-00-00-215 Telephone Water Plant  1,078.35  1,100.00  1,191.36  1,100.00  151.05  948.95 


2-41-00-00-00-250 Water Supply Contracted Services  7,983.88  11,000.00  12,015.10  11,000.00  8,318.78  2,681.22 


2-41-00-00-00-252 Water Supply Maint  1,968.90  3,000.00  2,451.60  7,600.00  3,577.43  4,022.57 


2-41-00-00-00-270 Water Supply Misc  22,947.95  1,500.00  31.14  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-41-00-00-00-510 Water Supply Goods & Service  6,196.25  7,000.00  4,464.17  6,500.00  2,765.53  3,734.47 


2-41-00-00-00-540 Water Supply Utilities Power  10,156.53  10,500.00  12,076.98  10,700.00  4,044.07  6,655.93 


2-41-00-00-00-541 Water Supply Utilities Gas  3,428.59  3,750.00  3,545.23  3,800.00  1,506.48  2,293.52 


2-41-00-00-00-905 Water Billing Discount  3,489.50  3,500.00  3,655.62  3,500.00  56.00  3,444.00 


*        TOTAL Water Expenses 84,700.14 78,250.00 68,426.58 83,100.00 29,579.02 53,520.98







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 7 of 10


Sewer Expenses


2-42-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Sewer  3,020.67  2,700.00  3,101.60  2,700.00  1,028.13  1,671.87 


2-42-00-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions Sewer  187.30  200.00  197.70  200.00  73.96  126.04 


2-42-00-00-00-131 Employer Benefit Deductions Sewer  156.02  200.00  276.80  200.00  75.36  124.64 


2-42-00-00-00-250 Sewer Contracted Services  19,819.86  5,250.00  2,481.70  5,250.00  0.00  5,250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-510 Sewer Goods & Services  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-42-00-00-00-905 Sewer Billing Discount  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


*        TOTAL Sewer Expenses 23,183.85 8,850.00 6,057.80 8,850.00 1,177.45 7,672.55


Waste Management Expenses


2-43-00-00-00-250 Solid Waste Contracted Services  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00  1,635.00 (1,385.00)


2-43-00-00-00-510 Solid Waste Goods & Services  50.48  250.00  0.00  250.00  0.00  250.00 


2-43-00-00-00-750 Solid Waste Requisition - CMRSWA  6,747.37  7,000.00  7,792.56  7,100.00  4,093.78  3,006.22 


2-43-00-00-00-752 Requisition - County Transfer Station  0.00  3,200.00  3,126.80  3,300.00  4,050.48 (750.48)


*        TOTAL Waste Mgmt Expenses 6,797.85 10,700.00 10,919.36 10,900.00 9,779.26 1,120.74


Cemetery Expenses


2-56-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Cemetery  1,688.45  2,000.00  3,346.52  2,100.00  1,240.29  859.71 


2-56-00-00-00-510 Cemetery Goods & Services  142.83  250.00  200.00  3,250.00  0.00  3,250.00 


2-56-00-00-00-540 Cemetery Utilities Power  947.99  1,100.00  1,006.25  1,100.00  335.76  764.24 


2-56-00-00-00-620 Cemetery Transfer to Reserves  0.00  0.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


*        TOTAL Cemetery Expenses 2,779.27 3,350.00 4,552.77 6,950.00 1,576.05 5,373.95


Planning & Development Expense


2-76-00-00-00-250 Development Contracted Services  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-76-00-00-00-251 Planning - GIS  1,659.00  1,730.00  1,681.12  1,730.00  5,202.10 (3,472.10)


2-76-00-00-00-252 ORRSC Requisition  3,288.28  3,650.00  3,863.00  5,200.00  0.00  5,200.00 


*        TOTAL Planning & Dev Expenses 4,947.28 5,880.00 5,544.12 7,430.00 5,202.10 2,227.90







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 8 of 10


Parks & Recreation Expenses


2-62-00-00-00-201 Community Service Misc  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-04-00-00-510 Pioneer Days Fireworks  3,000.00  0.00  3,150.00  3,000.00  0.00  3,000.00 


2-72-00-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Parks & Rec  4,396.15  2,000.00  5,978.61  2,000.00  2,654.56 (654.56)


2-72-00-00-00-725 Recreation Expenses (Vlg USE ONLY)  1,355.31  1,250.00  1,142.36  6,150.00  0.00  6,150.00 


2-72-00-00-00-540 Recreation Utilities Power  951.94  1,000.00  1,064.68  1,000.00  367.14  632.86 


2-72-00-00-00-541 Recreation Utilities Gas  730.00  800.00  855.88  800.00  372.37  427.63 


*        TOTAL Parks & Rec Expenses 10,433.40 5,550.00 12,191.53 13,450.00 3,394.07 10,055.93


Library Expenses


2-74-01-00-00-250 Library Contracted Services  968.38  1,000.00  886.57  1,000.00  886.06  113.94 


2-74-01-00-00-510 Library Goods and Services  0.00  500.00  10.45  500.00  75.13  424.87 


2-74-01-00-00-750 Library Society Operating Support  18,000.00  15,000.00  15,000.00  15,300.00  0.00  15,300.00 


2-74-01-00-00-771 Requisition Chinook Arch Library  2,480.60  2,490.00  2,531.16  2,500.00  1,290.86  1,209.14 


*        TOTAL Library Expenses 21,448.98 18,990.00 18,428.18 19,300.00 2,252.05 17,047.95


Community Hall Expenses


2-74-02-00-00-110 Salaries and Wages Community Hall  2,900.00  2,700.00  1,275.00  2,700.00  350.00  2,350.00 


2-74-02-00-00-250 Community Hall Contracted Service  488.95  500.00  315.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-02-00-00-510 Community Hall Goods & Service  954.03  1,000.00  1,601.89  1,000.00  1,298.01 (298.01)


2-74-02-00-00-540 Community Hall Utilities Power  1,920.75  1,500.00  2,108.79  1,500.00  916.91  583.09 


2-74-02-00-00-541 Community Hall Utilities Gas  1,240.96  1,125.00  1,456.03  1,125.00  628.91  496.09 


*        TOTAL Community Hall Expenses 7,504.69 6,825.00 6,756.71 6,825.00 3,193.83 3,631.17


Pioneer Parlour Expenses


2-74-03-00-00-110 Salaries & Wages Pioneer Parlour  18,973.75  22,200.00  22,604.66  18,500.00  0.00  18,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-130 Employer Source Deductions PP  694.03  600.00  1,014.14  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-250 Pioneer Parlour Contracted Services  75.94  1,500.00  1,432.00  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-74-03-00-00-474 Pioneer Parlour Expenses (Bldg)  939.03  1,000.00  2,786.58  1,000.00  100.00  900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-510 Pioneer Parlour Goods & Services  17,203.67  19,500.00  21,312.83  19,900.00  0.00  19,900.00 


2-74-03-00-00-540 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Power  1,598.36  1,700.00  1,702.28  1,700.00  373.80  1,326.20 


2-74-03-00-00-541 Pioneer Parlour Utilities Gas  834.76  1,100.00  1,019.48  1,100.00  483.62  616.38 


*        TOTAL Pioneer Parlour Expenses 40,319.54 47,600.00 51,871.97 44,200.00 957.42 43,242.58







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 9 of 10


Post Office Expenses


2-74-05-00-00-540 Post Office Utilities Power  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-74-05-00-00-541 Post Office Utilities Gas  0.00  375.00  0.00  375.00  0.00  375.00 


*        TOTAL Post Office Exp 0.00 875.00 0.00 875.00 0.00 875.00


Community Support Requisitions


2-26-00-00-00-100 Requisition - Policing  0.00  0.00  0.00  5,585.00  0.00  5,585.00 


2-62-00-00-00-206 Com Services: Communities in Bloom  2,925.00  2,000.00  1,788.75  2,000.00  0.00  2,000.00 


2-62-00-00-00-208 Spring Glen Park Req/Exp/Donate  1,500.00  1,500.00  1,428.57  1,500.00  1,500.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-209 Com Services: Glenwood Seniors Req  500.00  500.00  500.00  500.00  0.00  500.00 


2-62-00-00-00-210 Com Services: FCSS Requisition  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  2,446.00  0.00 


2-62-00-00-00-750 Com Services: Farm Safety Ctr Donation  0.00  300.00  300.00  300.00  0.00  300.00 


2-72-00-00-00-750 Recreation Brd Expenses (Vlg DON'T USE )  2,818.85  1,500.00  801.01  1,500.00  0.00  1,500.00 


2-98-00-00-00-102 Req Chinook Foundation  5,520.09  5,871.00  5,870.52  6,000.00  5,828.54  171.46 


2-98-00-00-00-108 Req United Irrigation Dist  4,203.18  4,310.00  4,553.30  4,400.00  0.00  4,400.00 


2-98-00-00-00-115 Req School Foundation  68,249.59  71,650.00  71,341.78  73,100.00  17,835.44  55,264.56 


2-98-00-00-00-116 DESIGNATED INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY 


(DIP)


 20.37  47.00  47.17  47.00  0.00  47.00 


2-12-00-00-00-763 General Reserves transfer from Operating  0.00  0.00  0.00  3,972.00  0.00  3,972.00 


*        TOTAL Community Support Requis 88,183.08 90,124.00 89,077.10 101,350.00 27,609.98 73,740.02


**       TOTAL Expenses 852,249.49 809,011.00 756,450.97 845,780.00 193,234.50 652,545.50


***      TOTAL Revenues Over Expenses 254,057.67 215,100.00 112,136.69 224,400.00 110,675.59 113,724.41







 4:18:40PM


2020-May-11


2020 Operating & Capital BUDGET to ACTUAL


General 


Ledger


Description 2018 Actual 2019 Budget 2019 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 YTD 


Actual


2020 Budget 


Remaining $


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD Page 10 of 10


Capital Grants Revenue


1-00-00-00-00-842 Grant - MSI Capital (88,225.34) (127,427.00) (91,802.29) (211,850.00)  0.00 (211,850.00)


1-00-00-00-00-846 Grants - FGTF/NDCC (90,569.74) (78,200.00)  0.00 (130,000.00)  0.00 (130,000.00)


*        TOTAL Cap Grants Rev (178,795.08) (205,627.00) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 (341,850.00)


**       TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE (178,795.08) (205,627.00) (91,802.29) (341,850.00) 0.00 (341,850.00)


Capital Expenses


2-12-00-00-00-762 Admin - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  0.00  10,750.00  10,070.20  679.80 


2-23-00-00-00-762 Protective Serv-Transfer to Capital  0.00  6,000.00  0.00  4,000.00  0.00  4,000.00 


2-31-00-00-00-762 Vlg Maint - Transfer to Capital  0.00  7,200.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-32-00-00-00-762 Strts & Rds - Transfer to Capital  0.00  113,407.00  0.00  181,400.00  0.00  181,400.00 


2-40-00-00-00-762 Irrigation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  5,000.00  3,500.95  1,499.05 


2-41-00-00-00-762 Water - Transfer to Capital  0.00  50,000.00  0.00  123,700.00  0.00  123,700.00 


2-42-00-00-00-762 Sewer - Transfer to Capital  0.00  0.00  0.00  12,000.00  0.00  12,000.00 


2-71-00-00-00-762 Parks & Recreation - Transfer to Capital  0.00  420.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-74-01-00-00-762 Library - Transfer to Capital  0.00  20,000.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00 


2-74-02-00-00-762 Community Hall - Transfer to Capital  0.00  5,100.00  0.00  5,000.00  0.00  5,000.00 


*        TOTAL Capital Expenses 0.00 207,127.00 0.00 341,850.00 13,571.15 328,278.85


**       TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 0.00 207,127.00 0.00 341,850.00 13,571.15 328,278.85


***      Revenues Over Expense/Capital (178,795.08) 1,500.00 (91,802.29) 0.00 13,571.15 (13,571.15)


*** End of Report ***








11:19:55AM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-May-5Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


January Balance Shown on Bank Statement  347,442.67 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8075 2020-01-24  150.00 


BANK DEPOSIT  8071 2020-01-30  2,788.50 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8092 2020-01-31  49.25 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8093 2020-01-31  227.50 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8091 2020-01-31  239.53 


Sub Total


 3,454.78 


 350,897.45 


Total Deposits Outstanding  3,454.78 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190510 2019-11-28  50.00 


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190559 2019-12-31  143.45 


ALBERTA SERVICE - LAND TITLES  20190576 2020-01-23  20.00 


CARDSTON COUNTY  20190581 2020-01-23  4,050.48 


ELIAS, ALBERT  20190583 2020-01-23  141.52 


MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC.  20190586 2020-01-23  714.02 


 5,119.47 (5,119.47)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 345,777.98 


 0.00 


 345,777.98 








 3:03:52PM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-May-5Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


February Balance Shown on Bank Statement  344,059.22 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8075 2020-01-24  150.00 


BANK DEPOSIT  8122 2020-02-27  8,934.00 


Sub Total


 9,084.00 


 353,143.22 


Total Deposits Outstanding  9,084.00 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190510 2019-11-28  50.00 


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190559 2019-12-31  143.45 


ALBERTA HEALTH SERVICES - PERMITS  20190603 2020-02-06  100.00 


ALBERTA SOUTHWEST REGIONAL ALLIANCE LTD. 20190604 2020-02-06  60.00 


DIGITAL CONNECTION INC.  20190610 2020-02-06  114.32 


HACH SALES & SERVICE CANADA LTD.  20190611 2020-02-06  754.07 


KUTSCH, VERNENE  20190612 2020-02-06  100.00 


ALBERTA MUNICIPAL SERVICES CORPORATION 20190616 2020-02-27  5,144.96 


ALBERTA ONE CALL CORPORATION  20190617 2020-02-27  12.60 


AMSC INSURANCE SERVICES LTD  20190618 2020-02-27  17,556.17 


ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD  20190619 2020-02-27  524.07 


BECK'S EXCAVATING & TRUCKING LTD  20190620 2020-02-27  2,101.05 


CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES  20190621 2020-02-27  6,125.70 


CARTER, GERALD  20190622 2020-02-27  184.08 


ELIAS, ALBERT  20190623 2020-02-27  17.70 


GREGG DISTRIBUTORS  LP  20190624 2020-02-27  285.03 


KOST FIRE EQUIPMENT. LTD.  20190625 2020-02-27  61.95 


LYBBERT, MYRON  20190626 2020-02-27  41.30 


MUNICIPAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS INC.  20190627 2020-02-27  304.51 


WELLS FARGO EQUIPMENT FIN CO  20190629 2020-02-27  220.36 


WORKER'S COMPENSATION BOARD - ALBERTA 20190630 2020-02-27  708.52 


XPLORNET COMMUNICATIONS INC.  20190631 2020-02-27  30.45 


 34,640.29 (34,640.29)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 318,502.93 


 0.00 


 318,502.93 








11:40:56AM


VILLAGE OF GLENWOOD


2020-May-11Accounts Payable Bank Reconciliation


Page 1 of 1


March Balance Shown on Bank Statement  306,074.24 


Add   Outstanding Deposits


Deposit Description AmountDeposit DateBatch #


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8075 2020-01-24  150.00 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8217 2020-03-31  239.53 


DIRECT DEPOSIT  8218 2020-03-31  49.25 


Sub Total


 438.78 


 306,513.02 


Total Deposits Outstanding  438.78 


Less   Outstanding Cheques


Payee AmountCheque DateCheque #


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190510 2019-11-28  50.00 


MACMILLAN, BRENDA  20190559 2019-12-31  143.45 


KUTSCH, VERNENE  20190612 2020-02-06  100.00 


ATB FINANCIAL MASTERCARD  20190653 2020-03-25  1,287.31 


CITY OF LETHBRIDGE - CITY HALL  20190654 2020-03-25  296.25 


HUNSPERGER, PERRY  20190655 2020-03-25  471.45 


WORKER'S COMPENSATION BOARD - ALBERTA 20190658 2020-03-25  740.00 


CANADA REVENUE AGENCY  20190688 2020-03-31  43.64 


 3,132.10 (3,132.10)Total Outstanding Cheques


And Adjustments


*** End of Report ***


Your Bank Balance Should Be


Your Reconciled Bank Balance Is


Difference


 303,380.92 


 0.00 


 303,380.92 








 


 


Update to Local Authorities  


ZEOC.South@albertahealthservices.ca 


March 16 2020 


 


 


COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations 


Center Liaison Officer 


 


Situation Update #3:  Prepared March 16, 2020 


Approved by South Zone EOC Director 


 


This event is dynamic and rapidly changing, check the AHS and AH website often for 


updates. Case counts will be shared though these websites. As of March 15, 2020, there 


is evidence of community transmission within the City of Edmonton and Calgary. The 


evidence remains that most of the cases in Alberta are connected to international travel 


or close contacts of international travel. 


 


As of March 16, 2020, there is one confirmed cases of COVID-19 in South Zone. 


 


This update does not supersede any messaging provided from AHS South Zone to emergency 


medical services and first responders.   


 


Thank you for your excellent leadership to support your communities and businesses. 


Your planning, efforts and innovative approaches along with ongoing communication is 


appreciated as with support out southern Alberta communities and health care services.   


 


What about Emergency Medical Services: 


 For our contracted EMS services, current protocols and information for COVID-19 are 


found at https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp. These are updated regularly. 


 For our contracted EMS services, continue to use established pathways for EMS 


questions and concerns. EMS Manager on call can be contacted at 403-369-8340. 


Alberta Health and AHS Public Health Enhanced Measures 


 Effective March 15, 2020, the Chief Medical Officer of Health along with Alberta 


Education has canceled K to 12 and in-person post-secondary classes. 


 All licensed child care facilities, out of school care and pre-school programs are closed 


indefinitely. Approved day homes with fewer than seven children can operate at this 


time, but enhanced environmental disinfection is required.  


 There have been additional restrictions put on mass gatherings. A mass gathering is 


defined as any event or assembling that brings together people in a single room or 


single space at the same time, such as an auditorium, stadium, arena, large conference 


room meeting hall cafeteria, theater, place or any other confirmed indoor or confined 


outdoor space. https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx#toc-2. Places 


of worship were added to this list on March 15, 2020. Please contact your 


Environmental Public Health office if you have any questions about mass gathering 


considerations and mitigation efforts (1-844-388-6691). 



https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page16944.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx?utm_source=google&utm_medium=sem&utm_campaign=Covid19&utm_term=beinformed&utm_content=v3&gclid=EAIaIQobChMIxf2K54CW6AIVmx-tBh3a_Q9oEAAYASAAEgLHJPD_BwE#p22780s5

https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp

https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx#toc-2





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 2 
 


 


 Alberta Health has put strict recommendations 


on visitors to our congregate care, seniors’ 


facilities, long term care and acute care 


facilities – limiting visits from essential visitors 


only. We would strongly encourage you to 


engage with community agencies (examples 


including drop in centers, cultural programs 


that primarily serve seniors) to put visitor 


restrictions in place or cancel programming at 


this time. Posters are found here.  COVID-19 


can seriously affect seniors and other 


vulnerable groups.   


 AHS ZEOC Continuing Care Branch will be 


working directly with Congregate Living and 


Continuing Care facilities in south zone to 


ensure they are prepared and aware of these 


restrictions. 


 


 Self-isolation is a term used to describe where clients are asked to stay home and away 


from crowds. Clients who self-isolate may be symptomatic. Resources on self-isolation 


can be found here. It would be advisable to message common preparation measures 


that can be taken, in the event employees are asked to self-isolate (see image above). It 


may be of value for local authorities to work on strategies to support staff and residents 


on self-isolation. Encourage checking in on and getting supplies for those currently on 


isolation.  


 Each afternoon, around 3:30 p.m., the Chief Medical Officer of Health provides and 


update to Alberta, you can see updated information here: 


https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx#toc-2 


 Alberta Health has also posted information for checking flights and risk of COVID-19 


exposure: https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-flight-information.pdf 


 


Business Continuity 


 We encourage municipalities to review their existing business continuity plans (BCPs) to 


ensure essential community’s services (water, waste water, and environmental utilities) 


are able to withstand interruptions with employee illness.  It is important to pay particular 


attention to and plan for staff travelling, both as part of the work responsibilities and 


personally. Alberta Health’s current considerations on travel are here. It would be 


encouraged to minimize travel within the work environment at this time.  


 We encourage municipalities to work with human resources, occupation health and 


relevant departments to plan for policies and resources surrounding staff travel, work 


accommodations and protective equipment. Occupational health resources are found 


here:  AHS Worker Compensation Board for both employers and employees.  



https://open.alberta.ca/publications/covid-19-information-help-prevent-the-spread-poster

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/health-self-isolation-information-sheet.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx#toc-2

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-flight-information.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/coronavirus-info-for-albertans.aspx#toc-9

https://www.canada.ca/en/employment-social-development/corporate/notices/coronavirus-occupational-health-safety.html

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/wcb-covid-19-employer-fact-sheet.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/wcb-covid-19-worker-fact-sheet.pdf





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 3 
 


 AHS encourages municipal leaders to reinforce with staff the importance of staying 


home when feeling unwell (the Chief Medical Officer of Health asked for a zero tolerance 


approach), and when asked to self-monitor, self-isolate or quarantine by Public Health 


officials. It is recommended for municipal leaders to develop business continuity plans 


for times of employee illness and quarantine periods. 


 


General: 


 AHS South Zone activated their Zone Emergency Operations Center (ZEOC) on  


March 6, 2020.  This is in addition to the provincial AHS Emergency Coordination Center 


(ECC) that has been established since January. 


 Within the province of Alberta, planning for public health issues and communicable 


disease threats is covered under the Public Health Act and done so by Alberta Health 


and Alberta Health Services. 


 Current Emergency Medical Services Representative into the AHS South ZEOC is 


through the EMS Manager on call can be contacted at 403-369-8340 


 Current Liaison Officer for Municipalities into the AHS South ZEOC:  Pam Hodgkinson 


(Pamela.Hodgkinson@ahs.ca/ 403-866-2701) 



mailto:Pamela.Hodgkinson@ahs.ca/






 


 


Update to Local Authorities  


ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca 


Alberta Health Website: https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information.aspx                                                                  


Alberta Health Services Website: https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/default.aspx 


 


 


COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations 


Centre Liaison Officer 


 


Situation Update #11:  Prepared April 26, 2020 


Approved by South Zone EOC Director 


 


As of April 3, 2020, South Zone has seen cases 


believed to be from community transmission.  The 


potential for community spread is increasing. 


 


South Zone Status: 


 Hospitals are planning for anticipated patient influx, 


based on current modelling.  At the time of this 


publication, there are 4 patients in South Zone 


hospitals [not for public use], with one of those in 


ICU. 


 AHS EMS contracted services, please check https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp to 


ensure alignment for protocols for EMS and MFR staff.  These resources are updated 


frequently.  For municipalities who maintain their own EMS services, please report any 


service or staffing reductions to EMS on call at 403-369-8340.   


 AHS Public Health continue to investigate cases of COVID-19, identify contacts and 


ensuring strict isolation and quarantine measures are enacted.  AHS Public Health will 


directly contact individuals who are considered to be a close contact, or what is 


considered to be a person who may have been exposed to positive COVID-19 cases.  


Only individuals contacted directly by AHS are considered to be a close contact.  


If you are not contacted directly by AHS, you are not considered exposed. 


 AHS will continue to actively assist municipalities working with vulnerable populations, 


including shelter clients, homeless and living rough, group homes and other congregate 


care settings.  If you are unfamiliar on which AHS department can assist, please connect 


with the South ZEOC liaison officer at ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca.  


A short story to test your community’s level of preparedness: 


 A small rural town serving 5000 residents has one small hospital and two small senior’s 


lodges.   


 The town is largely an agricultural community with a history of mining operations, the 


current industries in the area are agriculture and manufacturing.  In general the health of 


the community is fair, however a number of residents may have lung disease from 


working in the farming or mining industry.  The typical household size is five.  


 In early summer, a backyard wedding was held where 100 guests attended, including 


essential service workers [fire fighters, EMS, healthcare staff and grocery store 


employees].  It was a great day, with lots of dancing, singing, toasts and hugging.  


Guests from neighboring communities attended.   


AHS Priorities: 


 “Flatten the curve” through 


testing and public health 


protection measures 


 Prepare AHS healthcare 


centres for the anticipated 


increase in patient load 


 Protect AHS workforce and 


core service functions 


 Work with community 


partners in a population 


health approach 


 



https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information.aspx

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/default.aspx

https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp

mailto:ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 2 
 


 During the rehearsal dinner the evening before, one family member had a bit of a 


headache, but attributed it to the stress of planning such a celebration.  On the day of a 


wedding, the same family member felt a bit stuffy, attributed it allergies, took some 


allergy medication and carried on with the event.  After all, there is nothing better than a 


country wedding.   


 The day after the wedding, this family member had a sore throat, cough and decided to 


not go to the Sunday family breakfast.  On Monday, that same family member completes 


the health assessment tool and gets swabbed for COVID-19.  They stay home for the 


first day, but have a number of items to return that were rented for the wedding.  Two 


days later, the result is positive for COVID-19.  Based on the symptoms of COVID-19, 


this person was infectious two days before the rehearsal dinner.  This case of COVID-19 


now stays home in a separate bedroom of their home. 


 The case’s household members have been working during the week at the senior’s 


lodge and a fast food restaurant.  The household contacts now become ill because the 


family shares a bathroom. 


 New cases spread within the lodge and restaurant, which are identified about four days 


later.  Due the small town, there are a number of staff that work at both the hospital and 


lodge, impacting the number of available staff to support each site.  


 The remaining household members are working to get the crops seeded and the cattle 


tended to.   


 Five days after the wedding reception, the wedding Facebook page reports 40-50 guests 


feeling a bit off, including cough, fever and fatigue. There are five EMS staff that were 


guests and are now off work with symptoms, which drastically impacts the ability of the 


town’s emergency medical services to function.  There is also a pregnant lady with 


symptoms who has been hospitalized as she has asthma.  Her daycare aged daughter 


is also ill.  The husband is required to stay home from work to care for his daughter and 


tend to his wife, until he can arrange for child care.  He asks his frail mother in law to 


come babysit.   


 The husband goes back to in the manufacturing industry where there are close quarters 


and tight work spaces.  He becomes ill and so do his workmates.   


 His colleagues live in an apartment building with one bathroom, a small kitchen and 


three other roommates.  The three roommates all have multiple jobs, in a manufacturing 


plant, taxi service and contracted cleaning agency.   


 The next weekend, there is a branding to ensure the calves are vaccinated, tagged and 


ready for pasture.  There are 20 attendees at the branding, where trays of food were 


served in the corrals.   


 For every person who is unwell, COVID-19 can spread to two people unless strict 


prevention measures are enacted.  Every five days, the number of cases can 


double in a community?  Is your community ready? 


 This COVID-19 simulator is an example of how quickly the illness can spread especially 


with limited prevention measures in place.  


 


 



https://www.washingtonpost.com/graphics/2020/world/corona-simulator/





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 3 
 
Community Transmission – What can Communities Do Right Away to Prepare? 


 COVID-19 can spread rapidly in a community over a short period of time, for a number 


of reasons.  We have seen examples of this in Canada.  


o COVID-19 is highly infectious and has a long incubation period.  This YouTube 


clip is a great demonstration of how easily COVID-19 can spread.  


o COVID-19 is a new strain of virus that has not been previously identified in 


humans. 


o Older persons and persons with pre-existing medical conditions [such as high 


blood pressure, heart disease, lung disease such as COPD or TB, cancer or 


diabetes] appear to develop serious illness more often than others. 


o There is increasing evidence that is can spread before a person has any 


symptoms. This is called asymptomatic transmission. 


o Other sociocultural considerations such as multigenerational homes, large 


households or essential workers that are commuting together, working or living in 


close contact. 


 Ensure communication strategies and plans are well aligned and organized. 


o Ensure you have a strong listing of community partners that can support 


messaging within your community for timely and accurate information flow.  Do 


you require translated resources to reach your entire community 


demographics? 


o Prepare key messages to support your community.  Examples of such 


messaging include sharing key contacts for essential services such as food, 


medication and supply delivery, wellness checks on isolated residents and other 


vulnerable groups outside of congregate settings [manors, seniors apartments] 


o Continue to provide prevention messages, reaffirming and reinforcing key 


communications on physical distancing, social gatherings and sociocultural 


activities that may contribute to spread. 


o Establish strong networks and redundancies in case your key communication 


pathways are compromised. 


o Ensure key business partners are meeting with your community emergency 


management leaders regularly. 


 Identify your most vulnerable populations.  AHS has a role to support congregate care 


settings [Long Term Care, Supportive Living, Lodges, Shelters]. 


 Prepare for isolation or quarantine locations [hotels or other residences] in your 


community, to isolate those ill or exposed to COVID-19.  This may involve contracts, 


inspections, procurement of equipment including personal protective equipment [PPE], 


engagement of social agencies for food and other essentials.  Consider doing this early. 


 Review existing plans on business continuity.  Is there depth in your organization and 


structure to support ongoing operations? 


 A great resource to ensure your communication plans are ready and tested is found on 


Centers for Disease Control: https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/public-


health-communicators-get-your-community-ready.html 


 



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=rAj38E7vrS8

https://www.ccohs.ca/publications/PDF/businesscontinuity.pdf

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/public-health-communicators-get-your-community-ready.html

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/public-health-communicators-get-your-community-ready.html





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 4 
 
What about cultural ceremonies and celebrations: 


 No, at this time it is not safe to do so. 


 We understand how important these cultural events are and the impacts felt by 


communities from past history with limiting these events, however it is not safe to 


participate in these types of events. 


 Please consider alternative means such as over the telephone, or is possible through 


virtual connections like Facebook messenger, Skype, Facetime, What’s App.  Here is a 


link to a fact sheet: https://www.ipfcc.org/bestpractices/covid-19/index.html 


 If you are from the same household you could have a small celebration and gather with 


others when we are told it is safe to do so 


COVID-19 Testing in Alberta: 


 AHS has an expedited assessment for essential 


service workers, including offering prioritized 


swabbing to essential and critical workers 


determined essential by AEMA, such as 


Directors of Emergency management, or water 


treatment plant operators. 


 Swabbing is arranged by completing the online 


assessment tool.  While the worker is waiting for 


results, they must continue to self-isolate. 


 AHS has developed and Frequently Asked 


Questions (FAQ) for Public, we encourage you 


to share with your departments and 


communities.  


 In certain settings and circumstances, AHS will 


test asymptomatic individuals.  This is under the 


guidance and recommendation of the MOH and 


relevant stakeholders.  This approach also requires careful consideration to manage 


capacity and critical lab supplies.  


Resources: 


 Alberta Health Services has translated resources found here: 


https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17038.aspx and https://aimga.ca/covid-


19/  


 Alberta Health Services has a dedicated resource inventory for Low German Speaking 


Mennonite Communities, including audio messages: 


https://sites.google.com/view/lgmcovidresources/home   


 Alberta Health Services has created a dedicated resource page for Albertans impacted 


during this stressful time.  


 Alberta Health has a dedicated page for modelling and data related to COVID-19, 


additional statistical information is added regularly.  


 


 



https://www.ipfcc.org/bestpractices/covid-19/index.html

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17034.aspx

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/assets/info/ppih/if-ppih-ncov-2019-public-faq.pdf

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/assets/info/ppih/if-ppih-ncov-2019-public-faq.pdf

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17038.aspx

https://aimga.ca/covid-19/

https://aimga.ca/covid-19/

https://sites.google.com/view/lgmcovidresources/home

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/amh/Page16759.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-alberta-data.aspx#toc-0

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17058.aspx





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 5 
 
Common Public Health Terms: 


 Case management means interviewing confirmed COVID-19 cases to determine onset 


of symptoms, potential locations where exposure and illness was acquired and period of 


communicability.  This is done by AHS Public Health immediately once a case is 


identified. 


 A confirmed case refers to a person who has been diagnosed with COVID-19 through 


laboratory confirmation. 


 A close contact refers to person who provided care for a confirmed case, including 


health care worker, family member or, who had other similar close physical contact such 


as in a home, communal living or similar setting.  A close contact may also be someone 


who has contact with infectious bodily fluids of the confirmed case.   


 Contact tracing means determining individuals who were in close contact with a 


confirmed case when the case was highly infectious.  This is done by AHS Public Health 


after the case interview. 


 A person with clinical illness and exposure [formerly known as person under 


investigation] refers to a person who has symptoms that are consistent with COVID-19. 


 Quarantine means a person has strict limitations on freedom of movement and contact 


with other people, entering public places, during the incubation of a communicable 


disease. For COVID-19, this means 14 days if returned from travel, or at least 10 days 


after symptoms consistent with COVID-19 start and until you no longer have symptoms. 


 Self-monitoring means clients have no symptoms but are asked to be diligent about 


monitoring for the onset of symptoms.  


 Self-isolation means clients are asked to stay home and away from crowds because 


there are symptomatic. Resources on self-isolation are found here. It would be advisable 


to message common preparation measures that can be taken, in the event employees 


are asked to self-isolate. 


Offers of Support: 


 AHS has established a number of email addresses for agencies 


o Volunteer Health Staffing Support: careers@ahs.ca 


o Donations of health equipment or services: ahscovidoffers@ahs.ca 


o Specific questions surrounding personal protective equipment:  ppe@ahs.ca  



https://www.alberta.ca/self-isolation.aspx

mailto:careers@ahs.ca

mailto:ahscovidoffers@ahs.ca

mailto:ppe@ahs.ca






 


 


Update to Local Authorities  


ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca 


Alberta Health Website: https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information.aspx                                                                  


Alberta Health Services Website: https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/default.aspx 


 


 


COVID-19 (Coronavirus) Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations 


Centre Liaison Officer 


 


Situation Update #13:  May 11, 2020 


Approved by South Zone EOC Director 


 


There is community spread within South Zone and 


more concentrated within some areas.   


 


South Zone Status: 


 Hospitals are planning for anticipated patient influx, 


based on current modelling.  At the time of this 


publication, there are 5 confirmed COVID positive 


patients in South Zone hospitals [not for public use], 


with 2 of those in ICU. 


 AHS EMS contracted services, please check https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp to 


ensure alignment for protocols for EMS and MFR staff.  These resources are updated 


frequently.  For municipalities who maintain their own EMS services, please report any 


service or staffing reductions to EMS on call at 403-369-8340.   


 AHS Public Health continue to investigate cases of COVID-19, identify contacts and 


ensure strict isolation and quarantine measures are enacted.  AHS Public Health will 


directly contact individuals who are considered to be a close contact, or what is 


considered to be a person who may have been exposed to positive COVID-19 cases.  


Only individuals contacted directly by AHS are considered to be a close contact.  


If you are not contacted directly by AHS, you are not considered exposed. 


 AHS will continue to actively assist municipalities working with vulnerable populations, 


including shelter clients, homeless and living rough, group homes and other congregate 


care settings.  If you are unfamiliar on which AHS department can assist, please connect 


with the South ZEOC liaison officer at ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca.  


Updated Testing Criteria: 


 As of May 4th, Alberta has expanded the eligibility for those able to be swabbed for 


COVID-19.  This expanded list is found here: 


https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page16997.aspx#sign 


 Individuals requiring testing, are to arrange swabbing through 811 or the online 


assessment tool. 


 Essential Services workers, healthcare workers and law enforcement will have access to 


expedited swabbing, by completing the online assessment tool.  As a municipality or 


local authority, please continue to share the online assessment tool.  


 Please note there are differences between which symptoms require legal isolation for 10 


days and which ones require individuals to stay home until feeling better.  We recognize 


this may be confusing, and encourage ongoing messaging to support and provide clarity. 


AHS Priorities: 


 Work with community 


partners in a population 


health approach 


 “Flatten the curve” through 


testing and public health 


protection measures 


 Prepare AHS healthcare 


centres for the anticipated 


increase in patient load 


 Protect AHS workforce and 


core service functions 


 



https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information.aspx

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/default.aspx

https://ahsems.com/public/AHS/login.jsp

mailto:ZEOC.South.Liaison@albertahealthservices.ca

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page16997.aspx#sign

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17058.aspx

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17058.aspx

https://myhealth.alberta.ca/Journey/COVID-19/Pages/HWAssessLanding.aspx





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 2 
 


 


Updated Visitor Guidance for AHS Facilities: 


 On May 8th, AHS has provided updated guidance on visitors, in an effort to ensure steps 


are in place to restrict visitors to protect patients and clients, especially those at greatest 


risk of severe disease.  Our clients at greatest risk for severe complications are seniors 


and immunocompromised patients. 


 The updated visitor guidelines for AHS facilities are found here, and are an effort to align 


and follow the CMOH Orders. 


 The guidelines describe situations where essential visitors are able to visit residents in 


congregate settings, such as end of life care, care givers or family visits and outdoor 


visits. 


 The guidelines provide recommendations for acute care visitors, long term care facilities 


[which are often co-located in our rural hospitals in South Zone] and supportive living 


facilities. 


 As a municipality, thank you for supporting our visitor guidelines and contributing to 


keeping our most vulnerable populations protected. 


Wellness Resources: 


 AHS has been hearing about, and been the recipients of, some very special acts of 


kindness.  It is very heartwarming to see how community members pull together.  These 


acts can contribute to reducing stress and supporting wellness in tough times. 


 AHS has a number of wellness resources to support individuals, including resources for 


seniors and children. 


 We encourage municipalities to work with your social service providers within your 


ECC/ICP to share these resources. Within your community, you may have local Senior’s 


societies or local community groups that would benefit from these resources.  


Alberta’s Relaunch Strategy: 


 The Alberta Government announced its initial plans for the gradual re-launch of business 


and recreational activities across the province. This strategy includes the continuation of 


important health supports, such as: 


o Testing, surveillance, contact tracing and support for those who have tested 


positive 


o Stronger border controls 


o Guidance for the use of masks 


o Maintaining protection for the most vulnerable and rapid responses to outbreaks 


 The Alberta Government has been actively posting information related to the Relaunch.  


This website is updated often.  You are encouraged to review. 


o There are sector specific guidelines that municipalities can direct business to. 


o For all businesses, there is general guidance on how to build risk mitigation plans 


for COVID-19.  This document assists business on how to build plans and 


provides key considerations to consider. 


 At this time, there is no direction for AHS Public Health to attend businesses to ensure 


risk mitigation plans are in affect prior to the phased re-opening. 



https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/assets/healthinfo/ipc/hi-ipc-covid19-infosht-visiting-pts-pandemic.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/alberta-relaunch-strategy.aspx#guidance

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-workplace-guidance-for-business-owners.pdf





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 3 
 


 AHS Public Health will work with operators and communities to respond to concerns as 


they arrive. 


 During the relaunch phases, workplaces and communities will still need to continue to 


practice the health recommendations of health screening, physical distancing, strong 


illness policies and staying home when sick, excellent hand hygiene and respiratory 


etiquette and ongoing environmental cleaning and disinfection.  


Natural Disaster Season 


 Across the zone, a number vulnerabilities can be increasing within your region, including 


flood potential and fire hazards.  As you review your existing all hazard plans, AHS has 


provided some additional guidance on evacuation planning during COVID-19.  


 Considerations to think about include virtual registration and housing in hotels/dorms 


versus large public facilities. 


 AHS Public Health is also actively looking at how to conduct health screening and/or 


contact tracing during evacuations, should they occur. 


 Please engage your AHS Agency Rep into your Emergency Coordination Center early to 


support this planning, alongside your AEMA Field Officer. 


 Please share this information with your partners connected to your ECC. 


Resources: 


 Alberta Health Services has translated resources found here: 


https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17038.aspx and https://aimga.ca/covid-


19/  


 Alberta Health Services has a dedicated resource inventory for Low German Speaking 


Mennonite Communities, including audio messages: 


https://sites.google.com/view/lgmcovidresources/home   


 Alberta Health Services has created a dedicated resource page for Albertans impacted 


during this stressful time.  


 Alberta Health has a dedicated page for modelling and data related to COVID-19, 


additional statistical information is added regularly.  


 


Common Public Health Terms: 


 Case management means interviewing confirmed COVID-19 cases to determine onset 


of symptoms, potential locations where exposure and illness was acquired and period of 


communicability.  This is done by AHS Public Health immediately once a case is 


identified. 


 A confirmed case refers to a person who has been diagnosed with COVID-19 through 


laboratory confirmation. 


 A close contact refers to person who provided care for a confirmed case, including 


health care worker, family member or colleague, who had other similar close physical 


contact such as in a home, communal living or similar setting.  A close contact may also 


be someone who has contact with infectious bodily fluids of the confirmed case.  A close 


contact is not confirmed unless by Public Health.   



https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/topics/Page17038.aspx

https://aimga.ca/covid-19/

https://aimga.ca/covid-19/

https://sites.google.com/view/lgmcovidresources/home

https://www.albertahealthservices.ca/amh/Page16759.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-alberta-data.aspx#toc-0





Situational Update from AHS South Zone Emergency Operations Center Liaison Officer • 4 
 


 Contact tracing means determining individuals who were in close contact with a 


confirmed case when the case was highly infectious.  This is done by AHS Public Health 


after the case interview. 


 A person with clinical illness and exposure [formerly known as person under 


investigation] refers to a person who has symptoms that are consistent with COVID-19. 


 Quarantine means a person has strict limitations on freedom of movement and contact 


with other people, and entering public places during the incubation of a communicable 


disease. For COVID-19, this means 14 days if returned from travel, or 10 days from the 


start of their symptoms, or until symptoms resolve, whichever is longer. 


 Self-monitoring means clients have no symptoms but are asked to be diligent about 


monitoring for the onset of symptoms.  


 Self-isolation means clients are asked to stay home and away from crowds because 


there are symptomatic. Resources on self-isolation are found here. It would be advisable 


to message common preparation measures that can be taken, in the event employees 


are asked to self-isolate. 


Offers of Support: 


 AHS has established a number of email addresses for agencies 


o Volunteer Health Staffing Support: careers@ahs.ca 


o Donations of health equipment or services: ahscovidoffers@ahs.ca 


o Specific questions surrounding personal protective equipment: ppe@ahs.ca  



https://www.alberta.ca/self-isolation.aspx

mailto:careers@ahs.ca

mailto:ahscovidoffers@ahs.ca

mailto:ppe@ahs.ca






Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the 
regular meeting of the Chinook Arch 
Library Board was moved online. 
Trustees were provided with the 
meeting materials (with enhanced 
explanatory notes), and then invited 
to cast their votes using an online 
survey tool. A Zoom meeting was also 
scheduled for the time of the regular 
meeting, and trustees were invited to 
join the meeting to ask any questions 
they had about the contents of the 
meeting package. A total of 31 trustees 
cast votes online, with every motion 
but one passing unanimously.


Important agenda items included the 
2019 Annual Reports for Chinook Arch, 
and its two outlet libraries, along with 
the 2019 Audited Financial Statements.
Chinook Arch received a clean audit 
opinion from its auditor, Insight LLP 


of Lethbridge. The Board ended the 
year in a solid financial position, with 
a modest surplus after year-end 
transfers to pay for reserve-funded 
projects completed during the year.


Surplus funds from the building 
renovation project will be transferred 
back into the Building Reserve once the 
final building project report has been 
submitted and approved by Municipal 
Affairs. These funds will replenish 
the reserves that were depleted to 
complete needed repairs done before 
the receipt of the building project 
funds.


BOARD 
REPORT
CHINOOK ARCH LIBRARY BOARD MEETING - APRIL 2, 2020


APRIL BOARD MEETING
SUMMARY


As a result of an order from Alberta’s Chief Medical 
Officer of Health, all public recreational facilities have 
been closed in an effort to slow the spread of the virus 
that causes COVID-19. Public libraries are included in this 
order. Chinook Arch remains operational, with some 
service reductions. 


Services that have been impacted include: cataloguing 
and processing, interlibrary loans, and delivery. In-library 
programming is being reconfigured for online delivery.
Chinook Arch continues to offer IT support, consulting 
support, and direct support to patrons, many of whom 
are attempting to access OverDrive, hoopla, and other 
online services for the first time. Chinook Arch has also 
purchased a subscription to Zoom videoconferencing, 
and has made it available to member libraries and 
boards that wish to hold virtual meetings. Libraries 
continue to order materials, and Chinook Arch is 
ensuring that those orders are processed. To meet 
increased demand, Chinook Arch has invested additional 
funds in online resources.


CHINOOK ARCH AND COVID-19
PANDEMIC RESPONSE - UPDATE







BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT


*Note that the April “meeting” was 
held virtually due to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The following members 
cast a vote online. In addition, three 
members cast a vote but did not 
identify themselves; therefore, their 
vote is not counted here.


Arrowwood      Wendy Williams
Barnwell       Jane Johnson
Cardston      Dennis Barnes
Cardston County      Lloyd Kearl
Carmangay      JoAnne Juce
Claresholm      Tony Hamlyn
Coaldale      Briane Simpson
Crowsnest Pass      Doreen Glavin
Fort Macleod      Jim Monteith
Kainai Board of Education    Linda Weasel Head
Lethbridge      Heather Woodruff
LPL Resource Centre     Wendy Kalkan
Lomond       Marie Logan
Magrath      DeVar Dahl
Milk River      Margaret McCanna
Milo       Christopher Northcott
Nanton       Lise Mayne
Picture Butte      Teresa Feist
Pincher Creek      Mark Barber
Pincher Creek MD     Sandra Baker
Raymond      Joan Harker
Taber       Carly Firth
Taber MD      Tamara Miyanaga
Vulcan       Liz Hammond
Vulcan County      Doug Logan
Warner County      Morgan Rockenbach
Waterton      Lesley Little
Willow Creek MD.     Maryanne Sandberg
Ministerial Appointment     Vic Mensch CONTACT US


Chinook Arch Regional Library System
2902 7th Avenue North
Lethbridge, AB  T1H 5C6  |  403-380-1500
www.chinookarch.ca  |  arch@chinookarch.ca


facebook.com/
chinook.arch7


@chinooklibs @chinooklibs


With all Alberta libraries closed to the 
public, libraries and library systems are 
finding innovative ways to continue to 
serve their patrons.. Several libraries in the 
Chinook Arch region are offering curbside 
pick-up service, with library staff placing 
bags of materials outside the library for 
patron pick-up. Readers are increasingly 
turning to ebooks and audiobooks, which 
are available from the Chinook Arch 
website. Daily usage of these services has 
increased an average of 33% compared 
to February. Patrons are borrowing almost 
900 items per day from OverDrive alone! 
Programming is moving online as well, 
with the Digital Literacy Exchange Program 
and Seniors and Intergenerational 
Program classes being configured for 
remote delivery. And watch for a virtual 
Summer Reading Program in 2020!


LIBRARIES UNDER COVID-19


The Board reviewed and 
approved the following 


updated policies:


POLICY REVIEW Planning & Facilities Committee Timeline and Workplan


Finance & Personnel Committee Timeline and Workplan


Marketing/Communications Committee Timeline and 
Workplan


Libraries across southern Alberta take part in Chinook 
Arch’s Senior and Intergenerational Programs. 
Top Left : Jim and Mary Kearl Library of Cardston
Top Right: Barnwell Public Library
Bottom: Milo Library








MINUTES OF THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY MEETING HELD MARCH 5,  


2020 AT THE CARDSTON COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY BUILDING  


Board Members Present:    


Royce Leavitt – Cardston County      Gerry Selk – Town of Cardston     


Tim Court – Town of Cardston        Tom Nish – Cardston County  


Don Shideler – Village of Hill Spring    Barton Lybbert – Village of Glenwood     


       


  


Others Present:  


Danny Melvin – Fire Chief        Suzanne Pierson – Secretary/Treasurer  


    


Commenced at 5:00 p.m.  


  


Gerry Selk in the chair.                                                              


  


Opening Prayer: Tom Nish 


  


AGENDA  


  


Don Shideler moved to approve the agenda.                 Carried  


  


MINUTES  


The minutes of the January 9, 2020, meeting was discussed.    


Tom Nish moved to accept the minutes of the January 9, 2020 meeting.         Carried  


  


BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 


 


Danny Melvin reported that the Line of Credit has been removed at the Royal Bank. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


  


Danny Melvin reported that the January Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 4 miscellaneous, 3 


false alarms, 1 grass fire, 2 MFR’s and 1 MVC’s.    


 


Danny Melvin reported that the February Emergency Services statistics are as follows: 3 MFR’s, 1 false 


alarm and 5 miscellaneous.    


  


Danny Melvin advised that he will be cancelling Telpay as the service costs have increased. 


 


Danny Melvin reported that on March 18, 2020 he and Tom Avery will be attending a course at the 


Lethbridge Fire Station. 


 


Danny Melvin advised that the Waterton contract will commence May 15, 2020 and the deadline for 


applications is March 13, 2020. 


 







MINUTES CCES MEETING MARCH 5, 2020 
 


2 
 


Danny Melvin reported that Mid River has four new members to join their force from Hill Spring and 


they will be starting training soon. 


 


Danny Melvin advised that the province has a new Fire Commissioner.  The Authority is not qualified to 


do some inspections and Danny is waiting to see when all the new changes will be implemented. 


 


Danny Melvin reported that Volker Stevin is coming to train the fire fighters on a flag man course for 


highway control.  The Authority will need to pay for the books only. 


 


In December the Authority talked about upping the capital contributions and Danny was wondering if 


that was coming to fruition.  The board will speak with their municipalities. 


 


Danny Melvin advised that the Town has a lease agreement with AHS and it was renewed for another 


year until the end of January.  Danny advised the board that the Authority could use the space.  The 


board discussed raising the rental fee to help off-set expenses at the Fire Hall. 


 


Danny Melvin reported that he spoke with the Lethbridge dispatch and they stated that there were 52 


times that the Authority was called in 2019. 


 


The board inquired if there is available space to add on to the existing Fire Hall.  Danny will make some 


inquiries with the Town of Cardston on the lot size. 


 


Royce Leavitt inquired as to why AHS is having problems with arriving at the proper location with their 


ambulance.  The board is wondering if there is anything that can be done to improve the speed and 


accuracy to locate individuals. 


 


Danny would like to purchase a trailer to haul the side-by-side and equipment for rescue. 


 


20-02 Don Shideler moved to purchase a trailer to haul the side-by-side and equipment for rescue. 


               Carried 


  


Danny Melvin reported that training will be completed for running the side-by-side and water rescue. 


 


Tim Court moved to approve Danny Melvin’s report.             Carried  


  


Don Shideler reported that bids have been requested for water lines in Hill Spring. 


  


 


ADJOURNMENT  


Tom Nish moved to adjourn.                     Carried  


Adjournment at 5:38 p.m.  







MINUTES CCES MEETING MARCH 5, 2020 
 


3 
 


Next board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, April 2, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. at the Cardston County 


Emergency Services Building.    


  


              
Chairman   




























Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: April 17, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Outbreak 
Frequently Asked Questions – April 17, 2020  
 


The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 


municipalities changes on a daily basis. Municipal 


Affairs continues to support and provide regular 


updates addressing frequently asked questions and 


providing information on new tools as they become 


available. This update captures common questions 


on various topics, including education property tax 


deferrals, municipal deficits, declarations for state of 


local emergency and questions arising out of the 


Premier and Minister’s telephone town hall 


meetings. 


 


Time Extensions 
 


Time extensions enacted in Ministerial Order 


MSD:022/20 applied to planning and 


development appeals, which has led to concerns 


about the potential loss of the construction 


season. Will Municipal Affairs consider changes 


to ensure development can occur before October 


1, 2020? 


 


YES. The intent of Ministerial Order MSD:022/20 


was to provide time extensions so that municipalities 


could focus resources on responding to the COVID-


19 pandemic. This blanket extension did result in 


unintended consequences.  


 


Municipal Affairs will be updating the Ministerial 


Order to adjust the planning and development 


appeal timeline extension. Combined with the 


temporary regulation that gave flexibilities with how 


municipalities hold meetings, this should allow 


planning and development approvals to proceed 


while also conforming to current public health 


orders. Updates will be released soon. 


 


 


Property Tax Deferral 
 


Has the province announced any property tax 


relief?  


 


NO. The province has not cancelled any portion of 


the education property taxes for 2020. 


 


Is the province requiring any deferral of property 


taxes? 


 


YES. Municipalities are required to defer the 


collection of non-residential education property taxes 


for six months, beginning April 2020.  


 


This can be achieved through either: 


 the deferral of just the education portion of non-


residential property taxes to at minimum 


September 30, 2020, or  


 through a deferral of an equivalent amount of 


property tax in a shorter time frame by deferring 


both education and municipal non-residential 


property taxes to at minimum July 30, 2020. 


 


 


 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 



https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/MinOrders/2020/MunicipalAffairs/2020_msd022-20_Municipal_Affairs.pdf

https://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/MinOrders/2020/MunicipalAffairs/2020_msd022-20_Municipal_Affairs.pdf

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: April 17, 2020 | Page 2 


Is the province deferring collection of the non-


residential education tax requisition? 


 


YES. In an effort to assist with the cash flow 


challenges associated with offering tax deferrals to 


non-residential property owners, the non-residential 


portion of the education tax requisition will be 


deferred to December 2020. Only the residential 


portion of the requisitions will be invoiced in June 


and September, with the December invoice including 


the deferred amounts from June and September. 


 


Can a municipality adopt their own residential 


property tax deferral approach?   


 


YES. Municipalities have the discretion to choose 


whether to adopt a residential tax deferral approach 


and what that approach may be. Taxpayers may be 


expecting some form of relief given the province has 


publicly announced its non-residential education 


property tax relief. 


 


If a municipality chooses to adopt their own 


property tax deferral, will the province be 


compensating municipalities for lost revenue 


from penalties or costs incurred for modifying 


tax program software?  


 


NO. While the province understands the financial 


burden municipalities have to bear during this time, 


the province is also facing fiscal challenges and 


every level of government must do their part to 


support their stakeholders and communities during 


this pandemic.  


 


Are municipalities that already have tax penalty 


dates in the fall expected to provide additional 


property tax deferrals? 


 


NO. The intent is to delay the collection of education 


property tax until such time as the immediate 


pandemic crisis has passed. Municipalities with 


property tax deadlines after September 30 are 


already meeting this intent through the original 


penalty dates.  


 


 


Emergency Management 
 


Has the province called a State of Emergency 


under the Emergency Management Act?  


 


NO. While a Public Health State of Emergency was 


declared on March 17, 2020, under the provisions of 


the Public Health Act, there is no provincial State of 


Emergency. The following criteria established under 


the Emergency Management Act must be met 


before the province declares a State of Emergency: 


 A local authority’s capacity or ability to respond 
to an emergency or disaster has been 
exhausted, and the local authority is unable to 
restore public safety in their jurisdiction. 


 The resources typically available to a local 
authority or the Government of Alberta are not 
sufficient to support and/or respond to the 
emergency or disaster event. 


 The emergency or disaster is widespread, and 
the need for the additional powers provided 
under a declaration is necessary to cross-
jurisdictional boundaries. 


 
These criteria ensure the province can respond to 
disasters in a consistent, collaborative and 
resourceful way.  
 


Education Property Tax 


Deferral 


General information as well as property tax 


deferral guidelines are available at: 


www.alberta.ca/education-property-


tax.aspx    and 


open.alberta.ca/publications/non-


residential-property-tax-deferral-


guidelines. 


For further information, please contact a 


Municipal Affairs program advisor toll-free by 


dialing 310-0000, then 780-422-7125, or by 


email at taxprogramdelivery@gov.ab.ca. 



http://www.alberta.ca/education-property-tax.aspx

http://www.alberta.ca/education-property-tax.aspx

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/non-residential-property-tax-deferral-guidelines

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/non-residential-property-tax-deferral-guidelines

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/non-residential-property-tax-deferral-guidelines

mailto:taxprogramdelivery@gov.ab.ca





Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: April 17, 2020 | Page 3 


What powers does declaring a State of 


Emergency under the Emergency Management 


Act give the provincial government? 


 


When a State of Emergency is declared under the 


Emergency Management Act, government is 


authorized to lead response efforts including making 


all decisions on behalf of the province to keep 


Albertans safe. This also includes implementing 


emergency response plans and collaborating with 


partners to plan and implement controls around 


evacuation orders, travel, requisitioning property, 


authorizing entry and exit and more.  


 


What should a municipality consider in declaring 


a State of Local Emergency (SOLE)? 


 


Municipalities should have existing plans in place for 


taking extraordinary action. Declaring a state of 


local emergency is not required to activate these 


plans. Consideration should be given to current 


organizational priorities and to what programs and 


services municipalities need to continue to deliver 


through the COVID-19 pandemic and whether the 


enhanced powers that municipalities access through 


a state of local emergency declaration are needed to 


meet those priorities.  


 


What powers does declaring a State of Local 


Emergency (SOLE) under the Emergency 


Management Act give municipalities? 


 


Section 24 of the Emergency Management Act 


addresses the powers local authorities have when a 


state of local emergency (SOLE) has been declared 


including the following. 


 Controlling and prohibiting travel. 


 Acquiring or using personal property. 


 Procuring or fixing process for services and 


resources. 


 Causing the evacuation of persons, livestock or 


property. 


 Authorizing the conscription of persons needed 


to meet an emergency. 


 Providing for the restoration of essential facilities 


and the distribution of essential supplies. 


 Providing, maintaining and coordinating 


emergency medical, welfare and other essential 


services. 


 


Are there special grants available for 


municipalities that have declared a State of Local 


Emergency (SOLE)? 


 


NO. Declaring a State of Local Emergency does not 


provide access to any additional funding over and 


above the existing grants all municipalities may be 


eligible to apply to receive. 


 


 


Municipal Cash Flow 
 


Can a municipality run an operating deficit? 


 


YES. Municipalities are only prohibited from 


budgeting for a deficit. There are no provisions in 


the MGA that prevent or disallow a municipality from 


reporting a deficit at year end. If budgets are 


adopted, but due to the impact of the global 


pandemic, a municipality is unable to collect 


sufficient revenues to cover all expenditures, the 


municipality is permitted to report an operating 


deficit.  


 


Are there requirements for recovering operating 


deficits from the same year the deficit occurred? 


 


NO. There are no legislative requirements to recover 


amounts from a previous year’s operating deficit. 


The only deficits that require a recovery are outlined 


in section 244 of the Municipal Government Act. 


These are an accumulated deficit, net of the value of 


Alberta Emergency 


Management Agency 


For questions please contact the Alberta 


Emergency Management Agency at  


780-422-9000 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000. 







Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: April 17, 2020 | Page 4 


tangible capital assets. A deficit of this nature means 


that the municipality is in a negative surplus position 


with respect to its total financial surplus and can be 


an indication that the municipality has exhausted its 


financial capacity. If a section 244 deficit is reported 


in the annual financial statements, municipalities are 


required to budget to recover that deficit in the 


following year. If more than one year is needed to 


recover that deficit, this may be granted upon 


request to the Minister of Municipal Affairs. 


 


In recognition of the many financial strains 


facing many citizens, municipalities proactively 


enacted programs that delay collection of utility 


and property tax revenue; however, costs are 


still incurred to provide services and operate the 


municipality.  


 


Are steps being taken to help municipalities with 


this cash flow and deficit situation? 


 


YES. The province has deferred the collection of the 


non-residential component of the education tax 


requisition to December 2020, meaning the June 


and September invoices will not include amounts for 


non-residential education property taxes. Those 


amounts will be added to the December invoice.  


 


In addition, the province recognizes the financial 


impact municipalities are facing and is looking at 


options to address debt and debt limits. These will 


be announced in the near future. 


 


 


 


While the province announced customers can 


defer electric and gas utility payments for 90 


days, will the province mandate municipalities to 


defer municipal water utility payments? 


 


NO. It has been recognized that many municipalities 


have proactively implemented deferral programs; 


therefore, the province strongly encourages 


municipalities to continue to consider local measures 


that make sense within your local context, including 


the possibility of 90-day water utility payment 


deferrals. However, this is not a requirement.  


 


Shovel-Ready Projects 
 


Where do I send our municipality’s list of shovel- 


ready projects the Minister referred to during the 


town hall meetings?  


 


Municipalities can mail or email a letter explaining 


any shovel-ready projects to the Minister’s office: 


 


The Honourable Kaycee Madu 


Minister of Municipal Affairs 


132  Legislature Building 


10800 – 97 Avenue 


Edmonton, AB  T5K 2B6 


Email: minister.municipalaffairs@gov.ab.ca 


 


Also forward a copy to:  ma.geptbranch@gov.ab.ca. 


 


 


Municipal Advisory Services 


If you have municipal governance questions, 


please contact us at:    


780-427-2225  


or toll-free by first dialing 310-0000 


or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 


Further Updates 
 


We will continue to examine ways to support 


municipalities in navigating through this 


situation, and will provide further updates as 


new tools become available. 


 


 



file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Temp/minister.municipalaffairs@gov.ab.ca

mailto:ma.geptbranch@gov.ab.ca

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Temp/ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca






Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 8, 2020 | Page 1 


Municipal Governance 
During the COVID-19 Outbreak 
Frequently Asked Questions – May 8, 2020  
 


The state of the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact 


on municipalities continues to change on a daily 


basis. As we navigate these challenging times 


together, Municipal Affairs will continue to support 


municipalities and provide regular updates 


addressing frequently asked questions and providing 


information on new tools as they become available.  


 


 


Economic Relaunch 
 


The province has established a cross-ministry 


Pandemic Response Planning Team (PPRT) to lead 


efforts to coordinate and develop medium to long-


term plans for responding to and recovering from the 


COVID-19 pandemic. This includes critical initiatives 


such as the province’s Relaunch Strategy 


announced on April 30.  


 


The province is aware of the fluidity of the COVID-19 


pandemic and acknowledges there is still a lot of 


planning, communication, and action required to 


resolve the issues emerging as a result of the 


pandemic. The Pandemic Response Planning Team 


(PPRT) will continue to provide new information to 


all stakeholders as soon as it is available.  


 


 


With Stage 1 of the Alberta relaunch starting as 


early as May 14, 2020, does this mean we must 


open our municipal facilities and bring staff back 


to work? 


 


NO. Councils must remain vigilant and ensure safety 


is a main consideration. All social distancing and 


public health precautions remain in place and this 


will remain the case for some time yet. Stage 1 still 


recommends that working remotely be encouraged 


where at all possible. In addition, public attendance 


at businesses, facilities and events that have close 


physical contact will not be permitted, including arts 


and culture festivals as well as movie theatres. 


Pools, recreation centers, arenas, spas, gyms and 


nightclubs are also to remain closed. 


 


Some of the services listed in Stage 1 of the 


relaunch strategy are located in municipal 


facilities (e.g., daycares, summer camps, 


restaurants, personal services). Does this mean 


we must open our municipal facilities and bring 


staff back to work too? 


 


NO. At this time, municipalities are not required to 


open facilities, but may choose to if it is possible to 


follow and respect the guidelines outlined by the 


chief medical officer of health.  


 


In conjunction with your business continuity plan, 


municipalities should have, or should be preparing, 


their own phased community relaunch strategy to be 


implemented when it is safe to do so.  


 


 


 


Municipal Affairs Updates 


Previous COVID-19 updates are available at 


www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-


resources.aspx 



https://www.alberta.ca/alberta-relaunch-strategy.aspx#guidance

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/ZEKJT2FX/www.alberta.ca/municipal-government-resources.aspx





Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 8, 2020 | Page 2 


Can municipalities choose to keep certain 


municipally-controlled properties closed even if 


they are allowed to be open under the provincial 


approach? 


 


YES. The decision to open facilities remains a local 


council decision. Municipalities and the public must 


continue to put safety first while gradually reopening 


businesses, resuming activities and getting people 


back to work. 


 


With the Alberta Relaunch Strategy now in effect 


resulting in the relaxation of restrictions on boat 


launches and campgrounds, and visits to 


cottage properties, will there be a coordination 


of relaunch provisions in provinces that share 


borders with Alberta? 


 


YES. The province recognizes the strong 


relationships that exist with communities and regions 


between Alberta, British Columbia and 


Saskatchewan. As a result, Premier Jason Kenney 


has already had discussions with the BC and SK 


Premiers. As much as is possible, the three 


provinces will coordinate their relaunch strategies to 


avoid any huge differences in neighbouring 


communities.  


 


Is there a resource available for residents asking 


for more information about boat launches and 


parks? 


 


YES. Alberta Parks has more information available 


at https://albertaparks.ca/albertaparksca/news-


events/response-to-covid-19/boat-launches-open/ 


and is encouraging all Albertan’s to visit their 


Response to COVID-19 webpage before visiting 


Alberta Parks. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Are municipalities able to open 


municipal golf courses while keeping 


club houses and pro shops closed?  


 


YES. Golf courses can open as of May 2 as long as 


prevention and control measures are still in place. 


Municipal courses should implement precautionary 


measures to ensure the health and safety of staff, 


members and guests, including ensuring staff and 


patrons are able to book tee times online or via 


phone and physical distancing is practiced upon 


arrival and during play. The province has developed 


a factsheet providing guidance for golf course 


operators to support this relaunch phase available at 


https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-


fact-sheet-golf-course-operators.pdf. 


   


Municipal Sustainability Initiative  
 


The Minister of Municipal Affairs announced 


some temporary changes to the 2020 Municipal 


Sustainability Initiative (MSI) Program last week 


to support local governments in responding to 


the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. Will 


capital funding be available to municipalities 


when it is needed to advance projects that are 


ready to proceed? 


 


YES. In light of the significant urgent spending 


pressures on the provincial government, spending 


must be as efficient as possible, while ensuring that 


capital funding is available as soon as it is needed to 


advance projects that are ready to proceed. The 


province has implemented a new step in the 


payment process for the MSI capital program. 


 


Every month, Municipal Affairs will send an email to 


each municipality that qualifies for an MSI capital 


payment and did not receive an email in a previous 


month. To access their payment, each municipality 


must respond to the email indicating if they intend to 


spend the payment on a new or existing MSI capital 


project this year after spending any carry-forward 


amount from previous years. If a municipality does 


not intend to spend their payment this year or does 


not respond to the email, the payment will be 



https://albertaparks.ca/albertaparksca/news-events/response-to-covid-19/boat-launches-open/

https://albertaparks.ca/albertaparksca/news-events/response-to-covid-19/boat-launches-open/

https://albertaparks.ca/albertaparksca/news-events/response-to-covid-19/

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-fact-sheet-golf-course-operators.pdf

https://www.alberta.ca/assets/documents/covid-19-fact-sheet-golf-course-operators.pdf





Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 8, 2020 | Page 3 


withheld until February 2021. If a municipality initially 


indicated they did not need the payment this year, 


and their project plans change so that a payment is 


required, they can email a grant advisor at 


ma.msicapitalgrants@gov.ab.ca and their payment 


will be processed in the next payment batch. 


 


Are municipalities able to use MSI operating for 


any local government expenditure in the 2020 


program year? 


 


YES. The province has also expedited payment of 


2020 MSI operating allocations to qualifying local 


governments. This will give municipalities flexibility 


to manage operating funding in a way that best 


addresses unique community needs. Additional 


information on the changes is available in the 2020 


Addendum to the MSI Operating Program 


Guidelines. 


 


Do these changes impact on the amount of 


funding local governments will receive? 


 


NO. The changes announced are temporary 


measures to help communities and the province 


deal with the extremely difficult situation at hand. 


Additional information regarding any stimulus 


funding for shovel-ready projects will be made 


available as soon as possible. 


 


 


 


 


Are these program changes only in effect for the 


2020 year? 


 


YES. These changes are in place for the 2020 


program year only and local governments will 


continue to be required to meet their annual SFE 


reporting obligations. These are outlined in the 2020 


Addendum to the MSI Operating Program 


Guidelines. 
 


General Questions 
 


Does the province support the placement of 


blockades to stop casual travelers from coming 


off highways into various communities? 


 


NO. While the province understands the desires for 


councils to act on behalf of residents, we encourage 


decisions made by leaders to balance fundamental 


rights and public safety. Blocking provincial 


highways is unlawful and a risk to public safety. 


Municipal Affairs suggests that municipalities remain 


consistent with provincial public health guidance to 


reduce public confusion and increase compliance. If 


you have questions about legal impacts, you should 


seek appropriate advice. 


 


Are there resources available to ensure 


municipal messages are consistent with the 


provincial public health guidance?  


 


YES.  Posters and fact sheets are available for 


download at 


https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-


information-posters.aspx.  


 


Municipalities are encouraged to 


post in public places and share 


with local businesses to help 


reduce public confusion and 


increase compliance.  


 


 


 


 


 


Additional MSI Information 


Connect with the MSI program at:    


780-422-7125 or toll-free by first dialing  


310-0000 or email  
ma.msicapitalgrants@gov.ab.ca (MSI 


Capital Grants) or 


ma.msioperatinggrants@gov.ab.ca (MSI 


Operating Grants) 



mailto:ma.msicapitalgrants@gov.ab.ca

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://open.alberta.ca/publications/6101388

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information-posters.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/covid-19-information-posters.aspx

https://www.alberta.ca/municipal-sustainability-initiative.aspx

mailto:ma.msicapitalgrants@gov.ab.ca

mailto:ma.msioperatinggrants@gov.ab.ca





Municipal Governance during the COVID-19 Outbreak 
©2020 Government of Alberta | Published: May 8, 2020 | Page 4 


 


 


Are there options for councillors who are 


struggling to remain on council during the 


current pandemic as they deal with personal 


matters or small business affairs? 


 


YES. Section 174(2) of the Municipal Government 


Act permits a councillor to be absent from all regular 


meetings held during any period of eight consecutive 


weeks without disqualification if the absence is 


authorized by a resolution of council. 


 


Are there other resources that can support 


councillors during the current pandemic? 


 


YES. Municipal elected officials should be 


encouraged to reach out to their peers, connect with 


other peer mentors for advice and assistance 


through the Peer Network, and the Alberta Urban 


Municipalities Association and Rural Municipalities of 


Alberta board members. 


 


Councillors should also be encouraged to take 


advantage of existing Municipal Health & Safety 


Association mental health webinars available at 


https://maintainingmentalfitness.com/.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Many municipal elected officials are small 


business owners. Their businesses have been 


significantly impacted as a result of the COVID-


19 pandemic. The Federal Government put in 


place the Canada Emergency Business Account 


(CEBA) to ensure that small businesses have 


access to the capital they need to see them 


through the current challenges by providing 


interest-free loans to small businesses. This 


impacts many municipal councillors in Alberta, 


who may consider resigning in order to access 


capital for their business. Are entities owned by 


individuals holding political office now eligible to 


access the program?  


 


YES. Based on advocacy by the Alberta Urban 


Municipalities Association (AUMA) and the Rural 


Municipalities of Alberta (RMA) and with support of 


other municipal associations, the Government of 


Canada is currently updating agreements with 


banking institutions to clarify that members of 


parliament and senators are the only political office 


holders to be excluded from CEBA. As such, entities 


owned by provincial, territorial, municipal, and 


Indigenous political office holders are now eligible 


for the program. For more program information visit 


https://ceba-cuec.ca/. 


Further Updates 
 


We will continue to examine ways to support 


municipalities in navigating through this 


situation, and will provide further updates as 


new tools become available. 


 


If you have a specific question you would 


like answered in an upcoming update, 


please email your request to 


ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.   


 


 


 


Municipal Advisory Services 
If you have further questions, please contact 


us at:    


780-427-2225  


or toll-free by first dialing 310-0000 


or email ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca 



https://peernetwork.ca/

https://www.auma.ca/about-us/current-boards-and-committees

https://www.auma.ca/about-us/current-boards-and-committees

https://rmalberta.com/about/board-of-directors/

https://rmalberta.com/about/board-of-directors/

https://maintainingmentalfitness.com/

https://ceba-cuec.ca/

mailto:ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca.

file:///C:/Users/coral.murphy/AppData/Local/Temp/ma.lgsmail@gov.ab.ca






ALBERTA 


MUNICll'1\L AFFAIRS 


O.Dirt• oj'rhe Alinisll'r 
All.A, Et/1110111011 - Sourh \\1/m


Dear Mayors, Reeves and Councils: 


Earlier this spring, Municipal Affairs put in place a Ministerial Order that extended timeframes 
under the Municipal Government Act for a wide variety of activities for municipalities and your 
residents. The intent of these extensions was to relieve pressure on municipalities and allow you 
to focus on supporting your communities through the current public health emergency, and to 
preserve the right to a meaningful appeal process at a time when it was not yet clear how or when 
council meetings, appeal hearings or similar proceedings could be conducted. 


Unfortunately, some of the time extensions were leading to unintended consequences. As a 
result, today I have signed two new Ministerial Orders to replace the previous Order. A copy of 
each of the new Ministerial Orders is attached for your information. 


Ministerial Order MAG: 014/20 deals specifically with various assessment-related timelines, and 
makes important changes to clarify and shorten some of the original timeline extensions. 


Ministerial Order MSD: 036/20 addresses the non-assessment items from the original 
Ministerial Order. This Order retains some timeline extensions for things like financial reporting 
and other routine activities that can easily be deferred for now. However, for the most part, 
timelines for things like appeal processes have been returned to the standard timelines under 
the Municipal Government Act. 


To ensure that some Albertans are not deprived of their right of appeal, this second Ministerial 
Order includes transitional provisions. If a legislated timeline for a particular matter either ended 
or started between the date of the original Ministerial Order and this one (March 25 to April 17, 
2020), these transitional provisions "restart the clock" for the applicable appeal periods. This 
ensures that anyone who might have considered an appeal of a municipal decision, but chose to 
defer filing that appeal because they thought they had until October 1, will not inadvertently lose 
their right to appeal through a return to the normal timelines. 


I want to thank key partners like the AUMA, RMA, City of Edmonton, City of Calgary, and BILD 
Alberta for helping us work through these issues to arrive at this solution. Working together, we 
have again showed our ability to collaborate to identify and solve problems quickly and efficiently. 


I trust that these new Ministerial Orders will address the concerns that many of you have raised 
with me in recent days. As new issues and challenges arise, please do not hesitate to reach out 
to me and/or to ministry officials so that we can be aware of those issues and work with you to 
find solutions. 


Sincerely, 


Tclephon� 780-427-3744 Fax 780-422-9550 


,.,,,,trJ .,, rtr')I J,J ftJF"" 





























		AR 100741_Letter to Municipalities_SIGNED (updated)

		AR 100741_Ministerial Order (MAG 014-20) - SIGNED

		MO MSD 36 - 20






 


 
 


 
 
April 29, 2020 
 
 
Dear Mayors, Councillors and CAOs: 
 
I am writing to acknowledge that in recent months AUMA has received several concerns from 
members related to physician funding changes and the resulting impacts on access to health care, 
particularly in smaller communities. This includes formal requests for action from municipalities such 
as the Town of Pincher Creek and Lac La Biche County, as well as numerous emails and phone calls 
from others. 
 
On April 24, 2020, the Minister of Health announced further changes to physician funding that are 
intended to protect access to health care in rural and remote communities in Alberta. One of the 
initiatives referred to in the Minister’s announcement is the formation of a working group by the 
Provincial Primary Care Network Committee which will provide recommendations on how to improve 
primary care in rural communities. In order to ensure that the perspectives of municipalities are shared 
within this working group, I have requested that a representative from AUMA be included amongst 
the members of the group.     
 
Access to appropriate medical care in all communities is critical. Recognizing this, AUMA is also 
connecting directly with both the Alberta Medical Association (AMA) and Alberta Health to gain 
additional insight into this issue.  The insight acquired during discussions with AMA and the province 
will allow AUMA to build a more impactful advocacy strategy to support equitable access to health 
care for all Albertans. 
 
Additionally, AUMA is sending a  letter to the Minister of Health to request a meeting to discuss 
member concerns and the funding decisions made by the province to-date, and to ask him to ensure 
that municipalities have an ongoing voice in the work being done to achieve equitable access to 
health care for all Albertans in all communities. 
 
If you would like to discuss this matter with me directly, please feel free to contact me by email at 
president@auma.ca or my cell phone at (403) 363-9224. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
 
 


Barry Morishita 
AUMA President 



https://www.alberta.ca/release.cfm?xID=70161C7BFBFF2-FD66-A983-3300D09BD3FE5262

https://doccentre.auma.ca/auma/CorporateAdmin/Templates%20and%20Forms/Branded%20Templates/president@auma.ca






 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 7 


 


MINUTES ‐ 2  (2020) 


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, February 13, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 


ORRSC Boardroom (3105 ‐ 16 Avenue North, Lethbridge) 
 


EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE: 


  Gordon Wolstenholme ‐ Chair   Ian Sundquist 
  Jim Bester ‐ Vice‐Chair (absent)  Jennifer Crowson 
  Don Anderberg (absent)  Margaret Plumtree  
  Doug MacPherson   


STAFF: 


  Lenze Kuiper – Director  Barb Johnson – Executive Secretary 
 


AGENDA: 


1.  Approval of Agenda – February 13, 2020 ...............................................................................................  


2.  Approval of Minutes – January 9, 2020 .............................................................................. (attachment) 


3.  Business Arising from the Minutes 


4.  New Business 
(a)  Annual Report – Chair’s Message .................................................................................... (handout) 
(b)  Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Training ....................................................................  
(c)  Assessment Review Board Training ................................................................................................  
(d)  GIS Update .......................................................................................................................................  
(e)  Membership Update .......................................................................................................................  
(f)  Subdivision Statistics .................................................................................................... (attachment) 
(g)  Fee For Service Update ................................................................................................ (attachment) 


5.  Accounts 
(a)  Office Accounts – January 2020 


6.  Director’s Report ....................................................................................................................................  


7.  Executive Report.....................................................................................................................................  


8.  Adjournment ..........................................................................................................................................  


OLDMAN RIVER REGIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 8 


 


 
 
CHAIR GORDON WOLSTENHOLME CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:03 P.M. 


1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 


Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 


THAT the Executive Committee approve the agenda, as presented.  CARRIED 


2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


Moved by:  Jennifer Crowson 


THAT the Executive Committee approve the minutes of January 9, 2020, as presented.  CARRIED 


3.  BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 


 None. 


4.  NEW BUSINESS 


(a)  Annual Report – Chair’s Message 


 The previous title of the Annual Report ‘CHAIR’S MESSAGE’ has been changed to ‘MESSAGE 
FROM THE CHAIR AND DIRECTOR’.  The message that will appear in the 2019 Annual Report 
was handed out and reviewed. 


(b)  Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Training 


 During  2019,  a  total  of  16  appeals  were  heard  by  the  new  Chinook  Intermunicipal 
Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.   ORRSC will host a training session for Board 
members on Friday, February 28, 2020 in our office. 


(c)  Assessment Review Board Training 


 The ORRSC  Regional  Assessment  Review  Board  is  down  to  a  very  small  pool  of  trained 
members to draw from.  A 3‐day new member training session will be held on April 21‐23, 
2020 and notices for this course will go out shortly.  A few discrepancies in our bylaws were 
pointed out during the audits of some of our smaller communities, therefore, some minor 
changes may need to be made before the 2020 session begins. 


(d)  GIS Update 


 A grant application in the amount of $96,000 has been submitted to offset the cost of the 
GIS  Enhancement  Project  (software  provided  by  ESRI).    The  Town  of  Coaldale  is  the 
sponsoring municipality for the grant on behalf of 43 municipalities included in the project.  







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 9 


The Town of Pincher Creek is the pilot site and testing is nearing completion by the end of 
February 2020. 


(e)  Membership Update 


 The  Town  of  Granum  dissolution  became  effective  on  February  1,  2020  and  the 
municipality has been absorbed in to the M.D. of Willow Creek. 


 A letter dated February 4, 2020 to the Town of Coaldale requesting an audience with their 
council to discuss the value and benefit of remaining a member of ORRSC has received no 
response to date. 


 Director Lenze Kuiper delivered a letter to the County of Newell requesting a meeting with 
council on February 6, 2020 to discuss their notice  to terminate membership.   A  letter of 
response  dated  February  10,  2020  stated  their  normal  procedure  with  any  contracted 
consultants and service providers is to work out details of contracted services with staff and 
administration rather than council.   


Moved by:  Doug MacPherson 


THAT  the  Executive  Committee  accept  the  termination  of  the  Planning  Services Agreement 
with the County of Newell and work to make the transition by September 1, 2020.  CARRIED 


(f)  Subdivision Statistics 


 27 subdivision applications were received in January 2020 with revenue totalling $37,840. 


(g)  Fee For Service Update 


 Staff are working hard to complete most of the Intermunicipal Development Plans by April 
1, 2020. 


5.  ACCOUNTS 


(a)  Office Accounts – January 2020 
 
  5150    Staff Mileage  .................................................   Lenze Kuiper  ...........................................  $      312.00


  5150    Staff Mileage  .................................................   Lenze Kuiper  ...........................................  83.00


  5280    Janitorial Services  ..........................................   Madison Ave Business Services  ..............  425.00


  5310    Telephone  .....................................................   Bell Mobility  ...........................................  590.84


  5310    Telephone  .....................................................   Shaw Business  ........................................  189.95


  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   CPAA  .......................................................  250.00


  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   ADOA  ......................................................  125.00


  5330    Dues & Subscriptions  .....................................   Municipal World  .....................................  164.60


  5380    Printing & Printing Supplies  ...........................   Pitney Bowes  ..........................................  19.98


  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Pitney Bowes  ..........................................  231.98


  5380    Printing & Printing Supplies  ...........................   Lethbridge Mobile Shredding  .................  23.00


  5440    Land Titles Office  ...........................................   Minister of Finance  ................................  126.00


  5470    Computer Software  .......................................   Whipcord  ................................................  1,262.80


  5470    Computer Software  .......................................   ESRI    9,450.00







 


2020 ORRSC Executive Committee Minutes  –  Page 10 


  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Xerox  ......................................................  1,040.71


  5570    Equipment Repairs & Maintenance  ..............   Digitex  ....................................................  720.00


  1160    GST Receivable  ..............................................   GST Receivable  .......................................  683.83


 
        TOTAL  $15,698.69


 
Moved by:  Margaret Plumtree 


THAT  the  Executive  Committee  approve  the  Office  Accounts  of  January  2020  ($15,698.69),  as 
presented.  CARRIED 


6.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 


 The Director reported on his activities since the last Executive Committee meeting. 


7.  EXECUTIVE REPORT 


 Committee  members  reported  on  various  projects  and  activities  in  their  respective 
municipalities. 


8.  ADJOURNMENT 


 No Executive Committee meeting will be held in March. 


Moved by:  Gordon Wolstenholme 


THAT we adjourn  the  regular meeting of  the Executive Committee of  the Oldman River Regional 
Services Commission at 7:25 p.m. until Thursday, April 9, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.  CARRIED 


 
 
 
 
 
/bj    CHAIR:  _____________________________________   
 








1


Marilee Campbell


From: President <President@auma.ca>


Sent: May 6, 2020 3:19 PM


Subject: Alberta Police Advisory Board Appointments


Dear Mayors and CAOs:  
 
Along with the new police costing model unveiled in December 2019, the Justice and Solicitor 
General ministry also announced the establishment of an Alberta Police Advisory Board to give municipalities a 
voice in setting provincial policing priorities.  
 


This Board will be implemented in two phases:  
1. In the first year, an Interim Board will develop the structure and scope of the Advisory Board.  
2. On completion of the Interim Board’s mandate, the work of the Operational Police Advisory Board 
will begin for a four-year term.  


   
According to the Terms of Reference developed by the Justice and Solicitor General ministry, four of nine 
Interim Board representatives will include AUMA Board members. The remaining representatives will include 
the RMA Board and the Alberta Association of Police Governance Executive.      
  
The Interim Board will be primarily focused on developing the appropriate board 
structure, governance processes and the mandate to support an efficient and effective Operational Police 
Advisory Board. The Interim Advisory Board will also have the responsibility to keep municipal 
members (councils and local policing/advisory committees) apprised of government policing priorities and 
initiatives respecting policing priorities and Interim Board mandate matters.  
  
AUMA’s Interim Board appointments are as follows:  


• Mayor Bill Given, City of Grande Prairie  
• Deputy Mayor Angela Duncan, Village of Alberta Beach  
• Councillor Tanya Thorn, Town of Okotoks  
• Councillor Trina Jones, Town of Legal  


  
Interim Board members were appointed to ensure broad municipal perspectives and to align with each of the 
four RCMP districts (Central Alberta, Eastern Alberta, Southern Alberta and Western Alberta) as closely as 
possible.  
  
Once the Interim Board has completed its mandate, AUMA will be reaching out to membership, looking for 
nominations to serve on the Operational Police Advisory Board.  
 
Sincerely, 
 


  
Barry Morishita | President 


Mayor, City of Brooks 


C: 403.363.9224 | president@auma.ca 


Alberta Municipal Place | 300 8616-51 Ave Edmonton, AB T6E 6E6 


Toll Free: 310-AUMA  | www.auma.ca     
 


 


 







2


This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are 
addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender. This message contains confidential information and is 
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email. 


 


 






















































